
NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE SCHOOL BOARD 
GRAND FORKS PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT #1 

Monday, March 4, 2024 – 6:00 PM 

Mark Sanford Education Center (Enter at West Door #3) 

2400 47th Avenue South, Grand Forks, ND 

(The meeting will be broadcast live and archived at https://www.youtube.com/c/GFSchools) 

 

AGENDA 

 
Please note the stated times per topic are approximate and intended only as a guide. Upon convening the meeting, agenda topics may begin 

earlier or later than their stated approximate time. 

 

6:00 pm 1. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 A. Reading of School Board Meeting Norms 

6:01 pm 2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

6:02 pm 3. CELEBRATING SUCCESS 

 A. South Middle School 

6:17 pm 4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 A. February 20, 2024 

 B. February 26, 2024 

6:18 pm 5. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 Individuals wishing to address the school board are asked to complete a Public Comment Card, submit it to the school 

board secretary before the start of the meeting, and wait to be invited to speak. Each person may speak for up to 

three (3) minutes. No individual may speak on the same topic more than once. The chairperson reserves the right to 

limit the comments and the number of speakers. School Board members shall not engage in a response or enter a 

debate about any issue(s) brought before the board during this portion of the meeting.  Public comments and 

concerns will be directed to the Superintendent of Schools, who will deal with them according to policies adopted by 

the Board. 

 6. SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DISCUSSION 

 

6:24 pm 

6:54 pm 

 

6:55 pm 

 

6:56 pm 

 

 

7:06 pm 

7. SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ACTION 

 A. Audited Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2024 (Strategic Plan Area III) 

 B. Consent Agenda 

  1. Resignations 

 C. Recommendation to Approve Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Order for Discharge to be 

served on Nneka Nwaokeafor, and Board Action 

 D. Superintendent Evaluation Committee Report: 

  1. Superintendent’s March Evaluation 

  2. Superintendent’s Contract Extension 

 E. Consideration of Temporary Construction Easement related to North Dakota Department of 

Transportation Signal Rehab Project Adjacent to Career Impact Academy 

7:10 pm 8. OTHER 

 A. Announcements 

 B. Board Requests for Future Consideration 
  There should be no discussion concerning any item that is requested for future consideration. The Board 

President and Superintendent will determine the best method of response to board requests. 

 C. School Board Meeting Norms – How did we do? 

7:15 pm 9. ADJOURNMENT 

  

Persons with disabilities who may need assistance to access the meeting should call the superintendent’s office at 701-787-

4880 at least 24 hours prior to this meeting. 

 

March 4, 2024 
Page 1 of 291

https://www.youtube.com/c/GFSchools


Grand Forks Public School District #1 
 

School Board Meeting Norms 
 

The purpose of establishing school board norms is to ensure that all individuals have the opportunity 

to contribute in the meeting; to increase productivity and effectiveness; and to facilitate the 

achievement of its goals. 

 

NORMS 
 

1) Be prepared 

2) Be on time 

3) Value and respect  each other 

4) Exercise  thoughtful  deliberation  and conversation 

5) Be professional at the Board table and when visiting with the general public 

6) Speak up when the norms are not being followed 

7) Advocate on behalf of students and keep the community in mind 

 

GOVERNANCE 
 

1) Lead by policy 

2) Serve as advocates  for K-12 public  education 

3) Entrust the day-to-day operations to the professionals; Let the administrators do their work 

4) Assist community members and stakeholders in following the chain of command 

 

OTHER 
 

1) Consider staff and District capacity in resources 

2) Balance the meeting agendas so one meeting isn't heavier than the other 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Board Approved 10.8.18; (in effect 2018-19, 2019-20, 2020-21, 2021-22, 2022-23; 2023-24) 

March 4, 2024 
Page 2 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 2 of 291



South Middle School
Every Learner 

Every Day
Every Learner 

Every Day

South Middle School
March 4, 2024 
Page 3 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 3 of 291



The Team

● Travis Neil- Principal
● Brian Loe- Associate Principal
● Theresa Ostgarden- Building Resource Specialist
● Sally Akerlind- Student Behavior Interventionist
● Carla Haaven- Instructional Coach
● Tiffany Johnson- ML Teacher
● Kari Wiltse- ML Teacher
● Marilyn Iverson - ML Teacher (long term sub)
● Chris Johnsen- 7th Grade ELA Teacher
● Priscilla Mathsen - Math Interventionist

March 4, 2024 
Page 4 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 4 of 291



At South, we are dedicated to fostering an atmosphere of academic 
achievement and personal growth. Our mission is Every Learner, Every Day

South MS provides a vibrant learning community supported by passionate 
educators, dedicated staff, and actively involved parents. Our curriculum is 
designed to not only meet rigorous academic standards but also to ignite 
curiosity, creativity, and critical thinking skills in our students.

I am honored to be the principal at South MS

South Middle School
March 1, 2024 
Page 5 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 5 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 5 of 291



What we are most Proud of at South 

● People & Relationships
○ Staff
○ Families
○ Students
○ EVERYONE brings their “A” game every single day

● Diversity

● Welcoming and Belonging

● Traditions

● Opportunities outside of the school day

● Pride

March 1, 2024 
Page 6 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 6 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 6 of 291



In Our Halls…
❖ South Junior High was established 

in 1932 
❖ Current building opened 

January 25, 1999 (25 years)
❖ 572 Students Total (2/14/24)

➢ 26 New from the Day 1
➢ 15 Withdrawn from Day 1
➢ 77+  Multilingual Students (Magnet 

School)
❖ 69 Teachers & Support Staff
❖ 20 Paraprofessionals
❖ PBIS School
❖ PLTW Distinguished School
❖ HRS Certified Levels 1 & 2
❖ Year two of being a Targeted 

Support & Improvement School

March 4, 2024 
Page 7 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 7 of 291



South TSI Fishbone

Envision 
Curriculum

Staff Turn-over 
& On Boarding

Testing/STAR/Common 
Assessments

EL/ML

Student 
Engagement

Attendance Lacking Prerequisite 
Skills

Readability

● Fidelity of 
Implementation

● Professional 
Development

● Scope & Sequence
● Buy-In from Staff

● Hiring International 
Candidates

● NDTSS Mentoring for 
all 1st year teachers

● Second Step Lessons 
(Thursdays)

● Admin hosting 
biweekly Student 
Focus Groups for 
student input

● Buy-in with 
Assessments

● Student Goal Setting 
in Prime Time

● View Panorama & 
STAR information

● Full time Social 
Worker

● Daily calls to families 
for unexcused 
students

● Influx of students
● Lack of 

curriculum/supplies/
materials

● Staffing 

● Vocabulary Instruction 
in Tier 1

● Fidelity of 
Implementation

● Interventions with 
Priscilla

● STAR Phonics Screenings 
and UFLI Interventions

March 4, 2024 
Page 8 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 8 of 291



All School

At/Above Benchmark Below Benchmark

Identification Fall 2023 
Percentage

Winter 2023 
Percentage

Fall 2023 
Percentage

Winter 2023 
Percentage

All Students 46% 47% 54% 53%
Asian 47% 43% 53% 57%
Black 29% 36% 71% 64%
Hispanic/Latino 24% 29% 76% 71%
Native American 48% 46% 52% 54%
Pacific Islander 38% 38% 62% 62%
White 50% 50% 50% 50%
IEP Students 20% 20% 80% 80%
ML Students 13% 16% 87% 84%

STAR Reading Data

Quick Data
1) Total Enrollment Break Down
2) STAR Reading - All School
3) STAR Math - All School

All data used is from Panorama. The platform doesn’t have 2 or more races as an option so some students do double up.

March 1, 2024 
Page 9 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 9 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 9 of 291



All School

At/Above Benchmark Below Benchmark

Identification Fall 2023 
Percentage

Winter 2023 
Percentage

Fall 2023 
Percentage

Winter 2023 
Percentage

All Students 51% 55% 49% 45%
Asian 60% 57% 40% 43%
Black 26% 35% 74% 65%
Hispanic/Latino 21% 28% 79% 72%
Native American 40% 46% 60% 54%
Pacific Islander 38% 38% 62% 62%
White 57% 60% 43% 40%
IEP Students 19% 13% 81% 87%
ML Students 21% 32% 79% 68%

STAR Math Data

All data used is from Panorama. The platform doesn’t have 2 or more races as an option so some students do double up.

March 1, 2024 
Page 10 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 10 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 10 of 291



Math Interventions 

● XtraMath-Fact fluency 
● STAR data to identify standards students are missing
● Khan Academy to work on specific standards 
● One-on-one instruction
● Reinforcing tier one instruction
● Monthly STAR testing to track and monitor student progress
● When students show and maintain proficiency, they return to 

their regular schedule

March 4, 2024 
Page 11 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 11 of 291



ELA - Wit & Wisdom (6th & 7th Grade…soon to be 8th) 

Positive takeaways from the new curriculum: 
● Knowledge based curriculum, students learn 

history through their literary study 
● Variety of texts in class

○ Historical fiction novels, nonfiction, short 
stories, and articles

● Builds vocabulary knowledge through implicit 
and direct instruction

● Variety of writing styles
○ Narrative, Informative, and Argument 

● Builds students’ ability to communicate
○ Speak to Learn
○ Learning to Speak

March 4, 2024 
Page 12 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 12 of 291



UFLI Interventions 

● Research-based Instruction
● Tier 2 Intervention
● Closing gaps on Word Recognition

○ Scarborough Rope

University of Florida
  Literacy Initiative

March 4, 2024 
Page 13 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 13 of 291



Multilingual Program 

● 77 students
○ 34 - 6th grade
○ 17 - 7th grade
○ 26 - 8th grade

March 4, 2024 
Page 14 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 14 of 291



23 Languages Represented in the ML Program

1. Afghani/Western Pashto - 3
2. Amharic/Ethiopian - 1
3. Arabic - 3
4. Bassa - 1
5. Bengali - 2
6. Chinese - 2
7. English/Amharic - 1
8. Farsi - 2
9. French - 2

10. Hindi/Urdu - 2
11. Japanese - 1
12. Kru - 2
13. Malayalam - 1
14. Mandingo - 7
15. Nepali - 15
16. Russian - 1
17. Somali - 7
18. Spanish - 25
19. Swahili/Kiswahili - 3
20. Tagalog/Filipino - 2
21. Turkish - 1
22. Ukrainian - 1
23. Vietnamese - 1

March 4, 2024 
Page 15 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 15 of 291



ML Program  - Learning and Experiencing New Things

● Painting Pumpkins

March 4, 2024 
Page 16 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 16 of 291



Cold Weather 
Clothes

American 
Football

ML Program  - Learning and Experiencing New Things

Morning 
Announcements

March 4, 2024 
Page 17 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 17 of 291



Martin Luther King Jr. Making New Friends
Science

ML Program  - Learning and Experiencing New Things
March 4, 2024 
Page 18 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 18 of 291



ML Student Voices -  “How has SMS helped me and my Family?

“SMS has become my second home. I’m really grateful with god for putting teachers with patience and kindness, thank you for 
helping me overcome challenges and develop a love for teaching us how to speak English. I’m forever grateful.” - KZ (2 yrs in ML)

“I am a Muslim. At South Middle School, my friends and teachers at school give more value and importance to religious values than 
my friends in my country. They respect me very much.” - EO (1st year in ML)

“The teachers don’t let me feel sad about my grades and they know that we are struggling with english. They don’t let us feel bad 
about our vocabulary” - SK (1st year in ML)

“SMS is a great school the way they treat their students. The teachers are so kind and helpful they don’t let you feel that you are in 
different country.” - HM (1st year in ML)

“I was in Lebanon. Work. and I didn’t go school because I am Syrian and I will say thanks South Middle School.” - FA (1st year in ML)

“They can go to work without worrying about me, no one has to stay home and look after me.” - AA (3 yrs in ML)

“With the language, winter clothing, education, program, classes, conferences they help me a lot in classes. I am very grateful for 
everything.” - AM (1st year in ML)

“Thankful we came here to study and can make a good future for ourselves and our family.” AM (1st year in ML)

March 1, 2024 
Page 19 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 19 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 19 of 291



How does having a Behavior Interventionist at 
South MS Benefit Students and Staff?

“tools, support, and has been a 
safe place for our students”

“tremendous support helping our team 
problem solve behavior issues and create 
solutions and plans to help students be 

successful in the school setting”

“a great support for 
teachers to help deal with 

certain behaviors”

Ms. Akerlind 
is working on providing 

solutions and support 
to staff and students to 

make South awesome!  

“We’re able to make proactive behavior 
plans for students and have someone 

diligently follow through with celebrating 
successes and enforcing consequences.” “provide critical SEL skills 

and behavioral support to 
our students who are most 

in need”
“beneficial because it 

allows for students to get 
extra social, emotional, 

behavioral and academic 
support”

“priority to help students in advance, 
being proactive rather than reactive”

March 4, 2024 
Page 20 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 20 of 291



Clubs & Activities

Clubs/Activities:
● VEX Robotics
● Girls Who Code
● Fiber Arts Club
● Strategic Board Game Club
● GSA
● Musical
● Sources of Strength
● Student Council
● Choir (6)

March 4, 2024 
Page 21 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 21 of 291



Athletics

Sports:
● Soccer (Boys & Girls)
● Football
● Softball
● Volleyball
● Wrestling
● Basketball (Boys & Girls)
● Track (Boys & Girls)
● Intramural Sports - 6th Grade

○ Flag Football
○ Soccer
○ Ping-Pong
○ Court Sports
○ Basketball

March 4, 2024 
Page 22 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 22 of 291



Everyone is Welcome at
South Middle School…
Everyone is Welcome at
South Middle School…

Once a Spartan, 
     Always a Spartan!
Once a Spartan, 
     Always a Spartan!

March 4, 2024 
Page 23 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 23 of 291



 

GF School Board 2-20-2024 

Page 1 of 1 

 

GRAND FORKS SCHOOL BOARD 
GRAND FORKS PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT #1 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

February 20, 2024 
 

 

The School Board of Grand Forks Public School District No. 1 met in special session on Tuesday, February 20, 2024, 

at the Mark Sanford Education Center with Vice President Dave Berger and President Amber Flynn presiding. 

 

Board Members Present: Josh Anderson, Dave Berger, Amber Flynn, Monte Gaukler, Eric Lunn, Jeff Manley, Bill 

Palmiscno, and Cynthia Shabb. Absent: Joel Larson. 

 

Others Present: Dr. Terry Brenner, Superintendent of Schools; Catherine Gillach, Associate Superintendent of 

Secondary Education; Matt Bakke, Assistant Superintendent of Elementary Education, School District Attorney 

Meredith Vukelic, Administrative Law Judge Jessica Binder; Nneka Nwaokeafor; Tracey Johnson, Head Start Director; 

Cordelia Ekweme; Terry Arason; Jordyn Williams; Ashlyn Hanson; Eloisa Flores; Katya Morales; Andrea Tyce; Natalia 

Bosch-Santiago; and Griffin Gillespie, Human Resources Director. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance. The meeting 

was called to order at 2:02 p.m. by Berger and the 

Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

 

Flynn joined the meeting and continued the meeting 

as the presiding officer. 

 

Executive Session (closed meeting) as allowed by 

NDCC 15.1-15-08. It was moved by Lunn and 

seconded by Manley to convene into an executive 

session to conduct a hearing to discuss and act upon 

the contemplated discharge of Nneka Nwaokeafor 

from her current contract. Upon roll call vote as 

follows, the motion unanimously carried. Aye: 

Anderson, Berger, Gaukler, Lunn, Manley, Palmiscno, 

Shabb, and Flynn. Nay: None. Absent: Larson. 

 

Members of the public were asked to leave the room. 

 

The executive session began at 2:03 p.m. The 

executive session was recessed from 3:57 to 4:10 

p.m., 5:44 p.m. to 5:57 p.m., and 6:43 to 7:16 p.m. 

The executive session ended at 8:08 p.m. 

 

Members of the public were invited back into the 

room. 

 

The open meeting resumed at 8:23 p.m. 

 

It was moved by Lunn and seconded by Palmiscno 

that the Board finds that the charges and reasons for 

discharge of insubordination and conduct 

unbecoming the position of a teacher have been 

sustained with evidence produced at this hearing; that 

said charges have not been refuted; and that the 

school district’s attorney prepare draft Findings of 

Fact and Conclusions of Law for subsequent board 

discussion and action at a meeting to be scheduled 

within the next thirty days for purposes of finalizing 

the discharge of Nneka Nwaokeafor. Upon roll call 

vote as follows, the motion unanimously carried. Aye: 

Anderson, Berger, Gaukler, Lunn, Manley, Palmiscno, 

Shabb, and Flynn. Nay: None. Absent: Larson. 

 

Adjournment. The meeting adjourned at 8:26 p.m. 

 

 

APPROVED _________________________________ 

        (Date) 

 

___________________________________________ 

Amber Flynn, President 

 

___________________________________________ 

Brandon Baumbach, Business Manager 

March 4, 2024 
Page 24 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 24 of 291



 

GF School Board 2-26-2024 

Page 1 of 4 

 

GRAND FORKS SCHOOL BOARD 
GRAND FORKS PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT #1 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

February 26, 2024 
 

The School Board of Grand Forks Public School District No. 1 met in regular session on Monday, February 26, 2024, 

at the Mark Sanford Education Center with President Amber Flynn presiding. 

 

Board Members Present: Josh Anderson, Dave Berger, Amber Flynn, Monte Gaukler, Joel Larson via phone, Eric 

Lunn, Jeff Manley, Bill Palmiscno, and Cynthia Shabb. Absent: None. 

 

Student Board Members Present: Maggie Barker and Ryaan Alshami. Absent: None. 

 

Others Present: Dr. Terry Brenner, Superintendent of Schools; Brandon Baumbach, Business Manager; Catherine 

Gillach, Associate Superintendent of Secondary Education; Matt Bakke, Assistant Superintendent of Elementary 

Education; Brady Olson, Vice President, Grand Forks Education Association; and Cindy Johnson, Executive Secretary. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance. The meeting 

was called to order at 6:00 p.m. and the Pledge of 

Allegiance was recited. 

 

Reading of School Board Meeting Norms. Lunn read 

aloud the school board norms. 

 

Shabb joined the meeting at 6:03 p.m. 

 

Approval of Agenda. It was moved by Lunn and 

seconded by Palmiscno to approve the agenda as 

written. Upon voice vote, the motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

Approval of Minutes. It was moved by Lunn and 

seconded by Berger to approve the minutes of 

February 12, 2024, as written. Upon voice vote, the 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

Public Comments (non-agenda items). None. 

 

Public Forum Planning. Updated draft information 

that will be presented at the school board public 

forum was reviewed. Transportation will be provided 

for families in need and childcare and interpreters will 

be available on site. The forum will be held on 

Monday, March 25, 2024, beginning at 7:00 p.m. The 

school board will also meet briefly in regular session 

at 6:00 p.m. 

 

Consent Agenda. It was moved by Shabb and 

seconded by Manley to approve the consent agenda 

as follows: 

 Appointment of Laura Wollmann, Teacher of 

Visually Impaired, salary $57,514, effective 

August 19, 2024; 

 Family Care Leave of Absence for Shyanne Moen 

for 2024-2025 

 Open Enrollment Applications as presented; and 

 Resignations of Eric Puncochar, math teacher; 

Kiersten Brutger, elementary literacy specialist; 

Brooke Naughton, social worker; and Emily 

Manning, Head Start teacher, effective May 31, 

2024. 

Upon roll call vote as follows, the motion carried 

unanimously. Aye: Gaukler, Berger, Anderson, 

Manley, Lunn, Larson, Palmiscno, Shabb, and Flynn. 

Nay: None. Absent: None. 

 

Teacher Resignation and Waiving of Liquidated 

Damages – Brent Lloyd. It was moved by Manley and 

seconded by Anderson to accept the resignation of 

Brent Lloyd effective February 19, 2024, and to waive 

liquidated damages associated with the resignation. 

Upon roll call vote as follows, the motion carried 

unanimously. Aye: Shabb, Anderson, Larson, Lunn, 

Palmiscno, Manley, Gaukler, Berger, and Flynn. Nay: 

None. Absent: None. 

 

Finance Committee Report. Baumbach reported on 

the February 21, 2024, meeting of the Finance 

Committee. Discussion topics and topics for 

consideration are detailed below. 

 

• Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year 

Ending June 30, 2023. District #1 and District 

#14 received unmodified opinions. Consideration 

of the audits will take place at the March 4 Board 

meeting. 

 

March 4, 2024 
Page 25 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 25 of 291



 

GF School Board 2-26-2024 

Page 2 of 4 

 

• Consideration of New Markets Tax Credit 

Resolutions related to the Career Impact 

Academy. Baumbach reported on the new 

markets tax credit (NMTC) program, financing 

partners, next steps to closing, and required 

resolutions for consideration. The District is 

seeking financing through the NMTC program 

from which the proceeds will help fund the 

Career Impact Academy. The Finance Committee 

recommended the adoption of the resolutions. 

 

It was moved by Lunn and seconded by 

Palmiscno to adopt the Resolutions of the Board 

of Directors, New Markets Tax Credit 

Transaction. Upon roll call vote as follows, the 

motion carried unanimously. Aye: Gaukler, Lunn, 

Palmiscno, Berger, Anderson, Larson, Shabb, 

Manley, and Flynn. Nay: None. Absent: None. 

 

• Valley Middle School Bid Results (Acceptance of 

Guaranteed Maximum Price for Construction). 

Participating in this discussion were Lance 

Monson and Ben Matson of Construction 

Engineers and Tom Wesley of ICON Architectural 

Group. Monson reported receiving very positive 

bid results and with all design alternates 

accepted, the Valley Middle School construction 

bids came in under budget. The Finance 

Committee recommended approval of a GMP of 

$42,230,496 with soft costs and value 

engineering and alternate items #1-16 not to 

exceed $53M. Since the Finance Committee 

meeting, the GMP was updated to $44,584,385 

and the total project estimate was updated to 

$52,739,382. Construction Engineers is seeking 

approval of the guaranteed maximum price 

(GMP) for construction of $44,584,385. 

 

It was moved by Palmiscno and seconded by 

Manley to approve the guaranteed maximum 

price (GMP) of $44,584,385 for the construction 

of the new Valley Middle School. Upon roll call 

vote as follows, the motion carried unanimously. 

Aye: Manley, Palmiscno, Larson, Lunn, Gaukler, 

Berger, Shabb, Anderson, and Flynn. Nay: None. 

Absent: None. 

 

• Budget Update. Dr. Brenner reported on the 

district administration’s process to achieve a 15% 

general fund balance by June 30, 2026. For 

2024-2025, the District administration has 

worked through a comprehensive process with 

building administrators and program directors to 

attain a goal of reducing the salary and benefits 

budget by 5%. 

 

Public comments were received by the board. 

Listed below are the names of all individuals who 

spoke and the topic of their remarks: 

 

1. Jake Kalenze – reduction of funds from Fine 

Arts Department. 

2. Easton Sivertson – music and German cuts, 

budget cuts. 

3. George Beaver – restructuring of school 

funds. 

4. Michael Loesevitz – German program being 

cut. 

5. Brooke Meisel – restructuring of music and 

language programs. 

6. Melanie Kayl – restructuring of music 

programs. 

7. Christie Aleshire – reduction of music 

teachers. 

8. Mairi Ferguson – reduction of music 

teachers. 

9. Jonus Ferguson – reduction of music 

matters. 

10. Eli Stevenson – proposed budget reduction. 

11. Jonathan Haug – funding for school music. 

12. Tommy Hoffarth – supporting the arts. 

13. Mohammad A. – why we shouldn’t cut 

music positions and lessons. 

14. Jennifer Kolodka – computer science at 

RRHS. 

15. Ryan King – music budget cuts. 

16. Lee Cable – the importance of music and 

the arts. 

17. Alena Kolodka – computer science at RRHS. 

18. Owen Hull – don’t cut German. 

19. Ricky Chen – German program should not 

be cut. 

20. Abbey Kinneberg – proposed budget 

realignment. 

21. Ella McMullin – budget cuts and the effects 

it will have on families coming to Grand 

Forks. 

22. Rose Green – plan to axe German and 

music programs. 

23. Nellie Dachtler – budget cuts for music. 

24. Arynn Rubash – German program. 

25. Cassey Slater – library para budget 

realignment. 

26. Mia Trevino – Music Department and 

Language Arts. 

27. Eli Zerr – proposed cuts to various music 

March 4, 2024 
Page 26 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 26 of 291



 

GF School Board 2-26-2024 

Page 3 of 4 

 

and arts programs. 

28. Niska Kempenich – cuts to German and 

eliminating teachers. 

29. Eden Williams – music. 

30. Andrew Foerster – cut to German class and 

elimination of music teachers. 

31. Suzanne Nelson – music and other staff 

cuts. 

32. Rachel Hafner – reduction in workforce – 

budgets - related to special education 

services. 

33. Sarah Gulbraith – music cuts to programs. 

34. Emily Huber – budget cuts to music 

programs. 

35. Tyler Nagel – support of GF music 

education and recognize March as Music in 

Our Schools Month. 

36. Matt Strand – proposed budget cuts to 

music programs. 

37. Sarah Prescott – proposed budget cuts. 

38. McKenzie – budget cut. 

39. Hayley Beller – Music Dept., World 

Language Dept. – budget cuts. 

40. Cora Scheffer – proposed cuts to music and 

language programs. 

41. Steven Lesmeister – importance of the 

German program. 

42. Chelsea Larson – budget/music cuts. 

43. Julie Reiten – all programmatic cuts due to 

budget. 

 

Alshami left the meeting at 8:44 p.m. 

 

44. Natalie Buchhop – music budget cuts. 

45. Caleigh Carl – music cuts that are being 

planned. 

46. Anika Suriano – proposed budget 

realignment. 

47. Nicholas Bouvette – proposed budget 

realignment. 

48. El Walsh – budget cuts in the GFPS school 

district and music departments. 

49. Camdyn Antonenko – proposed budget 

realignment. 

50. Nile Riedhammer – the District’s decision 

concerning the Music Department. 

51. Ada Dactler – budget cuts in the Music 

Department. 

52. Reagan Gaukler – proposed budget 

realignment. 

53. Abby Boe – proposed budget cuts to GFPS 

departments. 

54. Bobby Wek – proposed budget cuts and the 

cuts of teachers. 

55. Oakley Oss – proposed school change for 

music teachers. 

56. Maia Green – Music Department teacher 

elimination/budget cuts/lesson cuts. 

57. Genevieve Ulrich – music program. 

58. Wesley Loesevitz – German program 

removal. 

59. Virginia Hutton – importance of music in the 

district. 

60. Tina Randle Black – German classes. Also 

read a statement from her daughter, Alyssa 

Black. 

61. Daniel Ulrich – SAIL program. 

62. Miley Piseno – budget cuts to arts and 

German departments. 

63. Mary Ann Crow – German program. 

64. Jakob Kehrwald – Removal of the German 

program from courses. 

 

The meeting recessed from 9:52 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. 

 

65. Nya Rout – music and arts program. 

66. Adina Weinstein – German language cuts. 

67. Vedant Srivastava – budget realignment in 

music and languages. 

68. Brady Ritland – proposed cuts to music 

programs. 

69. Henry Haug – budgeting in relation to Grand 

Forks music departments and their 

restructuring. 

70. Jessica Stoppleworth – music programming 

and staffing 6-12. 

 

Eight additional comment cards were completed 

however when called upon the individuals were 

either absent or chose to not speak. 

 

General Fund Financial Statement. Baumbach 

reported the period of July 1, 2023, through January 

31, 2024, total general fund revenues were 

$70,457,947 and total general fund expenditures 

were $63,828,012 resulting in revenues over 

expenses of $6,629,935. 

 

It was moved by Palmiscno and seconded by Berger 

to approve the General Fund Financial Statement for 

the period July 1, 2023, through January 31, 2024. 

Upon roll call vote as follows, the motion carried 

unanimously. Aye: Anderson, Berger, Gaukler, 

Larson, Lunn, Manley, Palmiscno, Shabb, and Flynn. 

Nay: None. Absent: None. 

 

March 4, 2024 
Page 27 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 27 of 291



 

GF School Board 2-26-2024 

Page 4 of 4 

 

District Calendar for 2024-2025 and Tentative Start 

and End Dates for 2025-2026. Gillach reported on the 

work of the District Calendar Committee that resulted 

in their recommendation for the 2024-2025 District 

Calendar and tentative start and end dates for 2025-

2026. School Board Policy ABAB requires the Board 

to approve the start and end days and teacher 

blackout days. 

 

It was moved by Lunn and seconded by Gaukler to 

approve the 2024-2025 District Calendar start dates 

of Tuesday, August 27, 2024, for grades K-9 and 

Wednesday, August 28, 2024, for grades 10-12; 22 

elementary school teacher blackout day on 

September 24, 25, 26, October 1,  November 19, 21, 

December 3, 5, February 4, 5, 6, 10, 12, 25, 26, 27, 

March 4, 6, and May 20, 21, 22, 27; 21 middle school 

teacher blackout day on October 3, 4, 7, 8, 24, 25, 

28, 29, January 9, 10, 13, 14, February 13, 18, March 

20, 21, 24, 25, and May 27, 28, 29; 19 high school 

teacher blackout days on October 3, 8, 24, 25, 28, 29, 

January 9, 10, 13, 14, February 13, 18, March 20, 21, 

24, 25, and May 27, 28, 29; and to tentatively approve 

a start date of Wednesday, August 27, 2025, for 

grades K-9 and Thursday, August 28, 2025, for 

grades 10-12 for the 2025-2026 school year. Upon 

roll call vote as follows, the motion carried 

unanimously. Aye: Palmiscno, Larson, Lunn, Manley, 

Berger, Gaukler, Anderson, Shabb, and Flynn. Nay: 

None. Absent: None. 

 

Announcements. Dr. Brenner announced Alshami 

was voted the EDC Senior Athlete of the Year in 

swimming and diving and a relay team took first 

place. 

 

Gaukler commented on her experience attending an 

E-Sports event at UND and the Anastasia 

performance at Grand Forks Central High School. 

 

Board Requests for Future Consideration. None. 

 

School Board Norms – How Did We Do? Lunn 

reported the board did very well in following its 

meeting norms. 

 

Adjournment. The meeting adjourned at 10:50 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED _________________________________ 

        (Date) 

 

___________________________________________ 

Amber Flynn, President 

 

___________________________________________ 

Brandon Baumbach, Business Manager 

March 4, 2024 
Page 28 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 28 of 291



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

Brandon Baumbach 

Business Manager 

 

Department Phone: 701.787.4885 

Direct Phone: 701.746.2205, Ext. 7126 

Fax: 701.772.7739 

bbaumbach020@mygfschools.org 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: Grand Forks School Board 
FROM: Brandon Baumbach, Business Manager  
SUBJECT: Audited Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2023 
DATE: March 4, 2024 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Included with this Board Agenda Packet are copies of the audit reports for both Grand Forks Air Force 
Base Public School District #140 and Grand Forks Public School District #1 for the year ended June 30, 
2023, as prepared by Brady, Martz & Associates, P.C. 
 
Both audit reports state that in the auditors' opinion the financial statements "present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund and the 
aggregate remaining fund information....as of June 30, 2023....in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America."  
 
Brian Opsahl of Brady, Martz & Associates, P.C. will present a report on the audited financial statements 
for the year ended June 30, 2023, for Grand Forks Air Force Base Public School District #140 and Grand 
Forks Public School District #1 at the School Board meeting.  Mr. Opsahl will be available to answer any 
questions.  
 
On February 19, the Finance Committee acted to accept the audited financial statements for the fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2023, for Grand Forks Air Force Base Public School District No. 140 and Grand 
Forks Public School District No. 1 and forward them to the school board with a unanimous 
recommendation for approval. 

 
District Administration and Finance Committee recommendation is to approve the audited financial 
statements for the year ended June 30, 2023, for each district. 
 
Attachments 
Audit Report for Grand Forks Air Force Base Public School District #140 ending June 30, 2023 
Audit Report for Grand Forks Public School District #1 ending June 30, 2023 
 
 
 

March 4, 2024 
Page 29 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 29 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 30 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 30 of 291



GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

March 4, 2024 
Page 31 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 31 of 291



GRAND FORKS AIR FORCE BASE PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 140 
ROSTER OF SCHOOL OFFICIALS - UNAUDITED 

AT JUNE 30, 2023 

 
- 1 - 

 
 

 Michelle Shepperd President 
 
 Branden Shepperd Vice President 
 
 Brent Harland Board Member 
 
 Arielle Neumann Board Member 
 
 Jennifer Rivera Board Member  
 
 Dr. Terry Brenner  Superintendent 
 
 Matt Bakke (Effective July 19, 2023) Assistant Superintendent of  
  Elementary Education 
 

Catherine Gillach Associate Superintendent of 
Secondary Education 

 
 Brandon Baumbach Business Manager  
         
 

March 4, 2024 
Page 32 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 32 of 291



Make Every Day Count | www.bradymartz.com

Opinions

Basis for Opinions 

Government 
Auditing Standards

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

March 4, 2024 
Page 33 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 33 of 291



   Make Every Day Count   www.bradymartz.com

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Government Auditing Standards

Government
Auditing Standards

Required Supplementary Information

March 4, 2024 
Page 34 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 34 of 291



   Make Every Day Count   www.bradymartz.com

Supplementary Information

Code of Federal Regulations
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 

Federal Awards

Other Information

Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

March 4, 2024 
Page 35 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 35 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 36 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 36 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 37 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 37 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 38 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 38 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 39 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 39 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 40 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 40 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 41 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 41 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 42 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 42 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 43 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 43 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 44 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 44 of 291



Basis of Presentation 

March 4, 2024 
Page 45 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 45 of 291



Governmental Funds  

March 4, 2024 
Page 46 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 46 of 291



Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting  

Government-wide Financial Statements: 

Fund Financial Statements: 

March 4, 2024 
Page 47 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 47 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 48 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 48 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 49 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 49 of 291



deferred outflows of 
resources
not

deferred inflows of 
resources
not

March 4, 2024 
Page 50 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 50 of 291



Restricted

Committed

Assigned – 

Unassigned 

March 4, 2024 
Page 51 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 51 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 52 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 52 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 53 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 53 of 291



Omnibus 2022,

Accounting Changes and Error Corrections – An Amendment of GASB 
Statement No. 62,

Compensated Absences,

March 4, 2024 
Page 54 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 54 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 55 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 55 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 56 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 56 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 57 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 57 of 291



Code of Federal Regulations Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards

Code of Federal Regulations Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards .

March 4, 2024 
Page 58 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 58 of 291



Make Every Day Count | www.bradymartz.com

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Government 
Auditing Standards 

deficiency in internal control

material weakness

significant deficiency

March 4, 2024 
Page 59 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 59 of 291



   Make Every Day Count   www.bradymartz.com

Government Auditing Standards.

Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

March 4, 2024 
Page 60 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 60 of 291



Make Every Day Count | www.bradymartz.com

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

Compliance
Supplement

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

Government Auditing Standards
Code of Federal Regulations Uniform Administrative 

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

March 4, 2024 
Page 61 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 61 of 291



   Make Every Day Count   www.bradymartz.com

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Government Auditing 
Standards

Government 
Auditing Standards

deficiency in internal control over compliance

material weakness in internal 
control over compliance

significant deficiency in internal control over compliance

March 4, 2024 
Page 62 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 62 of 291



   Make Every Day Count   www.bradymartz.com

March 4, 2024 
Page 63 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 63 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 64 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 64 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 65 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 65 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 66 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 66 of 291



Grand Forks School District prohibits discrimination and harassment based on race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender 
identity, gender expression, national origin, ancestry, disability, age, or other status protected by law.  The District also provides 

equal access to the Boy Scouts and other designated youth groups, as required by federal law. 

Brandon Baumbach
Business Manager

Department Phone: 701.787.4885
Direct Phone: 701.746.2205, Ext. 7126

Fax: 701.772.7739
bbaumbach020@mygfschools.org

Corrective Action Plan
June 30, 2023

2023-001

Contact Person – Brandon Baumbach, Business Manager

Corrective Action Plan – The District will approve an internal control policy to document the 
review of the financial statements.

Completion Date – Ongoing.

- 36 -

March 4, 2024 
Page 67 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 67 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 68 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 68 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 69 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 69 of 291



GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

March 4, 2024 
Page 70 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 70 of 291



 
 

GRAND FORKS PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
ROSTER OF SCHOOL OFFICIALS – UNAUDITED 

AT JUNE 30, 2023 
 

 

-1- 

Dr. Eric Lunn President 
 
Amber Flynn Vice President 
 
Josh Anderson Board Member 
 
Dave Berger Board Member 
 
Monte Gaukler Board Member 
 
Joel Larson Board Member 
 
Jeff Manley Board Member 
 
Bill Palmiscno Board Member 
 
Cynthia Shabb Board Member 
 
Dr. Terry Brenner  Superintendent 
 
Matt Bakke (Effective July 19, 2023) Assistant Superintendent of 

Elementary Education 
 
Catherine Gillach Associate Superintendent of 

Secondary Education 
 
Brandon Baumbach Business Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

March 4, 2024 
Page 71 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 71 of 291



Make Every Day Count | www.bradymartz.com

Opinions

Basis for Opinions 

Government
Auditing Standards

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

March 4, 2024 
Page 72 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 72 of 291



   Make Every Day Count   www.bradymartz.com

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Government Auditing Standards

Government
Auditing Standards

March 4, 2024 
Page 73 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 73 of 291



   Make Every Day Count   www.bradymartz.com

Required Supplementary Information 

Supplementary Information 

Code of Federal Regulations Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards

Other Information 

March 4, 2024 
Page 74 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 74 of 291



   Make Every Day Count   www.bradymartz.com

Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

March 4, 2024 
Page 75 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 75 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 76 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 76 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 77 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 77 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 78 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 78 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 79 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 79 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 80 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 80 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 81 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 81 of 291



Fiscal Year 2023-2024 

March 4, 2024 
Page 82 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 82 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 83 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 83 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 84 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 84 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 85 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 85 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 86 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 86 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 87 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 87 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 88 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 88 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 89 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 89 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 90 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 90 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 91 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 91 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 92 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 92 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 93 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 93 of 291



Government-wide Financial Statements: 

Fund Financial Statements: 

March 4, 2024 
Page 94 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 94 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 95 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 95 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 96 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 96 of 291



Accounting for Compensated Absences

March 4, 2024 
Page 97 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 97 of 291



Restricted

Committed

Assigned – 

March 4, 2024 
Page 98 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 98 of 291



Unassigned 

deferred outflows of 
resources
not

cost sharing defined benefit pension plan

deferred inflows of 
resources
not

unavailable revenue – property taxes

as cost sharing defined benefit pension plan

March 4, 2024 
Page 99 of 291
March 4, 2024 
Page 99 of 291



Revenue Recognition - 
Property Taxes

March 4, 2024 
Page 100 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 100 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 101 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 101 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 102 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 102 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 103 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 103 of 291



GRAND FORKS PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

JUNE 30, 2023 
 
 

- 34 - 

A.  Bonds: 
 
Bank of North Dakota:  
 

Net Current
Date of Interest Maturity Original Year Balance
Issue Rate Dates Amount Retired 06/30/23 Principal Interest
2013B 1.95% 2033 15,000,000$      738,207$    8,221,969$   752,602$      160,328$    

738,207$    8,221,969$   752,602$      160,328$    

 Amounts Due in         
2023-2024 

 
 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 
 

Years Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2024 752,602$         160,328$         912,930$         
2025 767,278          145,653          912,931          
2026 782,240          130,691          912,931          
2027 797,493          115,437          912,930          
2028 813,044          99,886            912,930          

2029-2033 4,309,312        255,340          4,564,652        
Total 8,221,969$      907,335$         9,129,304$       

 
Taxable Limited Tax Bonds: 
 

Net Current Anticipated
Date of Interest Maturity Original Year Balance Interest
Issue Rate Dates Amount Retired 06/30/23 Principal Interest Subsidy
2010A 6.00% 2028 6,230,000$        -$               6,230,000$   -$                373,800$    353,241$   
2010B 6.00% 2028 5,000,000         -                5,000,000     -                  300,000     283,500     
2022A 4.50% 2043 13,400,000        -                13,400,000   425,000       565,675     -                

-$               24,630,000$ 425,000$      1,239,475$ 636,741$   

 Amounts Due in         
2023-2024 

 
 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 
 

Years Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2024 425,000$         1,239,475$      1,664,475$      
2025 440,000          1,217,850        1,657,850        
2026 465,000          1,195,225        1,660,225        
2027 490,000          1,171,350        1,661,350        
2028 510,000          1,146,350        1,656,350        

2029-2033 14,205,000      2,290,650        16,495,650      
2034-2038 3,655,000        1,265,100        4,920,100        
2039-2043 4,440,000        457,800          4,897,800        

Total 24,630,000$    9,983,800$      34,613,800$     
 
The Series 2010A bonds were issued as “Qualified School Construction Bonds (QSCB)” pursuant 
to Section 54F of the Internal Revenue Code. The Series 2010B bonds were issued as “Qualified 
Zone Academy Bonds (QZAB)” pursuant to section 226(a) of the Taxpayer Relief Act of 1997.  
These designations provide that the District will be reimbursed by the federal government for any 
interest expense incurred on these issuances at an amount equal to the lesser of the amount of 

March 4, 2024 
Page 104 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 104 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 105 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 105 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 106 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 106 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 107 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 107 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 108 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 108 of 291



Pension Benefits

Tier 1 Grandfathered 

March 4, 2024 
Page 109 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 109 of 291



Tier 1 Non-grandfathered 

Tier 2

March 4, 2024 
Page 110 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 110 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 111 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 111 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 112 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 112 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 113 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 113 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 114 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 114 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 115 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 115 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 116 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 116 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 117 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 117 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 118 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 118 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 119 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 119 of 291



Omnibus 2022,

Accounting Changes and Error Corrections – An Amendment of GASB 
Statement No. 62,

Compensated Absences,

March 4, 2024 
Page 120 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 120 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 121 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 121 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 122 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 122 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 123 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 123 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 124 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 124 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 125 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 125 of 291



Make Every Day Count | www.bradymartz.com

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Government
Auditing Standards 

deficiency in internal control

material weakness

significant deficiency

March 4, 2024 
Page 126 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 126 of 291



   Make Every Day Count   www.bradymartz.com

Government Auditing Standards.

Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

March 4, 2024 
Page 127 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 127 of 291



Make Every Day Count | www.bradymartz.com

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

Government Auditing Standards
Code of Federal Regulations Uniform Administrative 

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards

March 4, 2024 
Page 128 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 128 of 291



   Make Every Day Count   www.bradymartz.com

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Government Auditing Standards

Government
Auditing Standards

March 4, 2024 
Page 129 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 129 of 291



   Make Every Day Count   www.bradymartz.com

deficiency in internal control over compliance

material weakness in internal 
control over compliance

significant deficiency in internal control over compliance

March 4, 2024 
Page 130 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 130 of 291



Special Education Cluster:

Total Special Education Cluster

Child Nutrition Cluster:

Total Child Nutrition Cluster

March 4, 2024 
Page 131 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 131 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 132 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 132 of 291



Code of Federal Regulations 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 

Federal Awards 

March 4, 2024 
Page 133 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 133 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 134 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 134 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 135 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 135 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 136 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 136 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 137 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 137 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 138 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 138 of 291



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Grand Forks School District prohibits discrimination and harassment based on race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender 
identity, gender expression, national origin, ancestry, disability, age, or other status protected by law.  The District also provides 

equal access to the Boy Scouts and other designated youth groups, as required by federal law.  
 
 

 

Brandon Baumbach 
Business Manager 

 
Department Phone: 701.787.4885 

Direct Phone: 701.746.2205, Ext. 7126 
Fax: 701.772.7739 

bbaumbach020@mygfschools.org 

Corrective Action Plan 
June 30, 2023 
 
2023-001 
 
Contact Person – Brandon Baumbach, Business Manager 
 
Corrective Action Plan – The District will review the general ledger account balances prior to the 
annual audit. 
 
Completion Date – Ongoing. 
 
2023-002 
 
Contact Person – Brandon Baumbach, Business Manager 
 
Corrective Action Plan – The District will approve an internal control policy to document the 
review of the financial statements. 
 
Completion Date – Ongoing. 

- 69 -

March 4, 2024 
Page 139 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 139 of 291



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Dr. Terry Brenner 

Superintendent of Schools  

 

Phone: 701.787.4880 

Fax: 701.772.7739 

tbrenner270@mygfschools.org 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: Grand Forks School Board 

FROM: Dr. Terry Brenner, Superintendent of Schools 

SUBJECT: Consent Agenda 

DATE: March 4, 2024 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Many items of a routine nature can be handled as one item rather than spending additional time on each item. 

Therefore, the Consent Agenda has been developed for the school board’s use to speed up the process of 

conducting its meetings. Items that may be listed on the Consent Agenda include: 

 

Appointments (excludes administrative appointments) 

Waivers of Years of Experience and Appointments 

Leave Requests (excludes requests for extension) 

Open Enrollment Applications 

Resignations 

Student Placements 

Student Travel Requests 

Other routine items may be included at the discretion of the board president or superintendent 

 

There should be no discussion concerning an individual item on the Consent Agenda. However, during the 

approval of the school board meeting agenda, any board member may request an item be removed from the 

Consent Agenda for further discussion. Once the school board meeting agenda has been approved, all items listed 

on the Consent Agenda are handled as one item. 

 

Items appearing on the Consent Agenda at the time of the publishing of this agenda packet with their requested 

considerations are: 

 

Resignations 

  

The administrative recommendation is for approval. 

 

cj 

Attachments 

March 4, 2024 
Page 140 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 140 of 291



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Grand Forks School District prohibits discrimination and harassment based on race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender 
identity, gender expression, national origin, ancestry, disability, age, or other status protected by law.  The District also provides 

equal access to the Boy Scouts and other designated youth groups, as required by federal law.  
 
 

 

Griffin Gillespie, SHRM-CP 
Director of Human Resources 

 
Department Phone: 701.787.4878 

Direct Phone: 701.746.2205, Ext. 7112 
Fax: 701.787.4350 

ggillespie080@mygfschools.org 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: Dr. Terry Brenner, Superintendent 
FROM: Griffin Gillespie, Human Resources Director 
SUBJECT: Teacher Resignations 
DATE: March 4, 2024 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
North Dakota Century Code 15.1-09-33 provides authority for the School Board to act on 
employment contracts for school district personnel. 
 
Please find attached letter of resignation from the following: 
 
Austin Salyer Dean of Students Valley Middle School 
 
Olivia Strid 3rd Grade Teacher Winship Elementary School 
 
 
Administrative recommendation is to approve the resignations effective May 31, 2024. 
 
 
Attachments 
GG 
 
 
 
 
 

March 4, 2024 
Page 141 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 141 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 142 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 142 of 291



March 4, 2024 
Page 143 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 143 of 291



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Dr. Terry Brenner 

Superintendent of Schools  

 

Phone: 701.787.4880 

Fax: 701.772.7739 

tbrenner270@mygfschools.org 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: Grand Forks School Board 

FROM: Dr. Terry Brenner, Superintendent of Schools 

SUBJECT: Recommendation to Approve Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Order for 

Discharge to be served on Nneka Nwaokeafor, and Board Action 

DATE: March 4, 2024 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Attached is information from Attorney Meredith Vukelic suggesting action to approve the Findings of 

Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Order for Discharge in the matter of Nneka Nwaokeafor. No discussion 

should occur relating to what occurred during the discharge hearing since that was in executive session. 

 

Attachment: 

Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Order for Discharge in the Matter of Nneka Nwaokeafor 

March 4, 2024 
Page 144 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 144 of 291



GRAND FORKS PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

 

GRAND FORKS, NORTH DAKOTA 

 
 
 IN THE MATTER OF: 

 NNEKA NWAOKEAFOR 

 
 FINDINGS OF FACT, 

 CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND 

 ORDER FOR DISCHARGE 

 

The matter of the contemplated discharge of Nneka Nwaokeafor (hereinafter teacher or 

Nneka Nwaokeafor) came before the School Board of Grand Forks Public Schools (hereinafter 

District) for hearing pursuant to Section 15.1-15-08 and Chapter 28-32 of the North Dakota 

Century Code. 

 APPEARANCES 

On February 20, 2024, ALJ Binder commenced the hearing for the purpose of considering 

the discharge of Nneka Nwaokeafor for insubordination and/or conduct unbecoming a teacher. 

Present throughout these proceedings were eight (8) of nine (9) members of the School Board1, 

ALJ Binder, Superintendent Dr. Terry Brenner, Head Start Director Tracey Johnson, Assistant 

Superintendent of Elementary Schools Matt Bakke, District Legal Counsel Meredith Vukelic, the 

teacher Nneka Nwaokeafor, and the teacher’s invitee, Cordelia Ekwueme. Board and teacher 

witnesses were allowed to remain in the room when not testifying. 

 PROCEDURAL HISTORY 

At a meeting of the Board held on November 27, 2023, the Board voted that a special 

meeting of the Board be held at a time and place to be set by the administrative law judge, at which 

time the Board will discuss and act upon the contemplated discharge of Nneka Nwaokeafor from 

her current contract for insubordination and/or conduct unbecoming the position of a teacher. 

                                                 
1 School Board Member Joel Larson was not present. 

March 4, 2024 
Page 145 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 145 of 291



Written notice of the action was served on Nneka Nwaokeafor by Dr. Brenner on November 28, 

2023 [Exhibit 5].2 By letter dated November 29, 2023, the Director of the Office of Administrative 

Hearings, Timothy J. Dawson, appointed Jessica Binder as the Administrative Law Judge to 

preside over the hearing, as provided by N.D.C.C. § 15.1-15-08. On December 14, 2023, a 

telephonic prehearing conference was held and attended by ALJ Binder, Dr. Terry Brenner, 

District Legal Counsel Meredith Vukelic, and Nneka Nwaokeaforr. On December 19, 2023, ALJ 

Binder issued the Notice of Hearing and Prehearing Order to both parties, which set prehearing 

deadlines and scheduled the hearing for February 20, 2024, continuing on February 21, 2024, if 

needed. Nneka Nwaokeafor was personally served by the Office of Administrative Hearings via 

regular mail with documents, including the Notice of Hearing and Prehearing Order, on December 

19, 2023. 

On February 9, 2024, the List of Charges [Exhibit 1]; Witness, Exhibit, and Invitee Lists; 

and Current Board Member List were served upon ALJ Binder and Nneka Nwaokeafor via 

electronic mail and regular mail. 

Commencing at 2:00 p.m. on February 20, 2024, the hearing was held in executive session 

pursuant to N.D.C.C. § 15.1-15-08(3), and was recorded digitally. The District presented evidence 

in support of the discharge through the testimony of Dr. Terry Brenner, Superintendent; Andrea 

Tyce, Head Start Mental Health and Disability Manager; Katya Morales Monroy, Head Start 

Teacher Assistant; Natalia Bosch-Santiago, Head Start Paraprofessional; Jordyn Williams, Head 

Start Paraprofessional; Ashlyn Hanson, Head Start Behavior Interventionist; Eloisa Flores, Head 

Start Teacher Assistant; Terry Arason, Head Start Educational Manager; Tracey Johnson, Head 

Start Director; Matt Bakke, District Assistant Superintendent; and Griffin Gillespie, District 

                                                 
2 All exhibit references are to Exhibits received in evidence on February 20, 2024. 

March 4, 2024 
Page 146 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 146 of 291



Human Resources Director. The teacher presented evidence through her own testimony, and 

through her witness, Cordelia Ekwueme. Exhibits 1 through 16 were admitted into evidence by 

the District and explained through testimony. The teacher offered no exhibits.  

Following closing statements by Nneka Nwaokeafor and District Legal Counsel Meredith 

Vukelic, ALJ Binder closed the record and turned the matter over to the Board. The Board then 

commenced its deliberations.   

After considering the testimony of the witnesses and the exhibits admitted into evidence, 

the Board, being fully advised in the premises, makes the following: 

 FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. Nneka Nwaokeafor held a teaching contract with Grand Forks Public Schools for the 2023-

2024 school year. Nneka Nwaokeafor’s contract provides in part: “…Teacher shall 

faithfully perform the services prescribed by the School Board or its designated 

representative during the life of this Contract…”  [Exhibit 2] 

 

2. Nneka Nwaokeafor was assigned to a Head Start teaching position for the 2023-2024 

school year. [Exhibits 6, 7, 8] 

 

3. The Head Start Teacher Job Description provides that the teacher is to “Assist children to 

achieve their School Readiness Goals in a developmentally appropriate classroom 

environment” and includes one job responsibility is to “Provide emotional support in 

accordance with CLASS through fostering a Positive Classroom Climate, Teacher 

Sensitivity and Regard for Student Perspectives.” [Exhibit 7] 

 

4. The Head Start policies and procedures require staff to “implement positive strategies to 

support children’s well-being and prevent and address challenging behavior”, to “not 

maltreat” children, and to “emphasize nurturing and responsive practices, interactions, and 

environments that foster trust and emotional security.” [Exhibit 8] 

 

5. The Staff Conduct Policy (DE) provides, “All staff members are responsible for becoming 

familiar with and abiding by … professional codes of ethics associated with their licensure 

if applicable, the school district’s policies, and the regulations designed to implement 

them” and further provides that “[E]ach staff member is required to: Conduct oneself 

professionally whenever serving in their official capacity as a school district employee 

including maintaining professional decorum and professional boundaries in all interactions 

with students”, to “Exercise honesty and integrity when executing all duties”, to “adhere 

to the professional codes of ethics associated with their licensure if applicable”, and to 

“treat all staff, students, and community members with dignity and respect.” [Exhibit 9] 

March 4, 2024 
Page 147 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 147 of 291



 

6. The Maintaining Professional Employee-Student Boundaries Policy (DEBD) provides, 

“The Board requires employees … to treat one another with respect and professionalism. 

District employees … are legally and ethically obligated to exercise good judgment and 

maintain professional boundaries at all times when interacting with students on and off 

school property. Employees … must not intrude on a student’s physical and emotional 

boundaries unless the intrusion is necessary to serve a legitimate health, safety, or 

educational purpose.” [Exhibit 10] 

 

7. The Restraint or Seclusion policy (FFC) provides that, “The District prohibits district 

employees … from using any form of restraint and/or seclusion on students except when 

the student is engaging in dangerous behavior” and further prohibits staff from “Using 

restraint or seclusion as a behavioral intervention when behavior does not pose an 

immediate risk of physical harm and/or injury or has not resulted in harm to the student or 

others” and also states that “Only trained staff members should implement physical 

restraint or seclusion interventions.” [Exhibit 11] 

 

8. The Code of Professional Conduct for North Dakota Educators, in the Preamble, provides: 

“The educator accepts the responsibility to practice the profession according to the highest 

ethical standards”; and in Principle I – Commitment to the Student, provides: “In fulfilling 

obligations to students, the North Dakota educator: Shall protect the student from 

conditions detrimental to learning or to physiological or psychological well-being” and 

“Shall accord just and equitable treatment to all students as they exercise their educational 

rights and responsibilities”; and in Principle II – Commitment to the Profession, provides: 

“In fulfilling obligations to the profession, the North Dakota educator: Shall accord just 

and equitable treatment of all members of the profession in the exercise of their 

professional rights and responsibilities.” [Exhibit 14] 

 

9. Terry Arason testified that Nneka Nwaokeafor received approximately six (6) weeks of 

teacher orientation which included training on Head Start and District policies, procedures, 

and curriculum as well as guidance, coaching, and multiple weeks of observing other 

teachers and classrooms, to prepare her to lead a classroom in a new country, and Tracey 

Johnson testified that Nneka Nwaokeafor had received adequate onboarding and training. 

[Exhibits 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13] 

 

10. Terry Arason testified the Head Start program purposely did not open Nneka Nwaokeafor’s 

classroom until October 16, 2023, to give Nneka Nwaokeafor adequate time to prepare to 

lead her classroom. 

 

11. Terry Arason testified that she and Tracey Johnson provided continued coaching and 

directives to Nneka Nwaokeafor during the two weeks her classroom was operating and 

that they detailed multiple issues in need of attention in a Google Document accessible to 

Nneka Nwaokeafor. [Exhibit 13] 

 

12. Tracey Johnson testified she investigated, between November 1, 2023, and November 3, 

2023, an incident of alleged physical misconduct by Nneka Nwaokeafor toward a Head 

March 4, 2024 
Page 148 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 148 of 291



Start student that had occurred on November 1, 2023, and that her investigation also 

revealed other concerning conduct engaged in by Nneka Nwaokeafor toward students and 

other Head Start staff, including an admission by Nneka Nwaokeafor that she had 

restrained students. Terry Arason testified that Nneka Nwaokeafor was not one of the staff 

members trained to use restraints on students and Nneka Nwaokeafor’s use of restraints 

was in violation of policy. [Exhibits 4, 10, 11] 

 

13. Andrea Tyce, Katya Morales Monroy, Natalia Bosch-Santiago, Jordyn Williams, Ashlyn 

Hanson, Eloisa Flores, and Terry Arason testified that Nneka Nwaokeafor engaged in 

conduct involving students and/or staff that made them uncomfortable or that did not 

conform with their training, some of them giving examples of physical restraints used on 

students, ignoring students who were crying or having emotions, speaking in a rude manner 

to students and staff, and not engaging with students enough except with Nneka 

Nwaokeafor’s supervisors were present, and Tracey Johnson testified she deemed these 

witnesses credible because their reports were consistent. [Exhibits 3, 4, 13] 

 

14. Andrea Tyce, Katya Morales Monroy, Natalia Bosch-Santiago, Jordyn Williams, Ashlyn 

Hanson, Eloisa Flores testified they would not feel comfortable working with Nneka 

Nwaokeafor again and/or would not feel comfortable having Nneka Nwaokeafor work with 

District students again, and Katya Morales Monroy and Natalia Bosch-Santiago further 

testified that they personally have children in the Head Start program and would not feel 

comfortable if Nneka Nwaokeafor returned and taught their children.  

 

15. Andrea Tyce and Katya Morales Monroy testified to discrepancies between what they 

witnessed Nneka Nwaokeafor had done or not done with students and what Nneka 

Nwaokeafor reported to Tracey Johnson while being investigated by Tracey Johnson, and 

Dr. Brenner testified to a determination that this conduct of substantiated dishonesty by 

Nneka Nwaokeafor led to larger trust issues. [Exhibits 3, 4] 

 

16. Terry Arason testified that Nneka Nwaokeafor had not complied with all mission, vision, 

goals, policies and procedures Nneka Nwaokeafor had been trained on. [Exhibits 6, 7, 8, 

9, 10, 11, 12] 

 

17. Tracey Johnson testified a foster mother of one of the Head Start students told Tracey 

Johnson she would not bring their foster daughter back to Head Start if Nneka Nwaokeafor 

was still employed. 

 

18. Tracey Johnson testified that, as a mandatory reporter, she had reported the November 1, 

2023, allegation to the state office that investigates suspected child abuse and neglect, that 

an Institutional Child Abuse and Neglect assessment occurred, and that she received a letter 

explaining there was no indication of Institutional Abuse or Neglect having occurred by 

Grand Forks Head Start because Nneka Nwaokeafor had been provided appropriate 

training and education, and Head Start followed policies and procedures when made aware 

of the incident. [Exhibit 15] 

 

March 4, 2024 
Page 149 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 149 of 291



19. Tracey Johnson, Matt Bake, and Griffin Gillespie testified that, at the conclusion of a 

meeting between them and Nneka Nwaokeafor in early November 2023, Nneka 

Nwaokeafor slammed the office door as she left the meeting, making them feel 

uncomfortable. [Exhibit 3] 

 

20. Dr. Brenner and Tracey Johnson testified that Nneka Nwaokeafor had not complied with 

certain District or Head Start policies and procedures and certain provisions in the North 

Dakota Code of Professional Conduct for Educators. [Exhibit 3, 14]  

 

21. On November 9, 2023, Dr. Brenner issued a letter to Nneka Nwaokeafor explaining the 

determinations he had made that Nneka Nwaokeafor had engaged in conduct unbecoming 

her position and insubordination and explaining his intention to recommend the Board 

contemplate her discharge for cause. [Exhibit 3] Dr. Brenner testified he is still 

recommending Nneka Nwaokeafor be discharged for cause. 

 

22. Dr. Brenner testified that on November 28, 2023, he provided Nneka Nwaokeafor with 

written notice that the Board had contemplated her discharge. [Exhibit 5] 

 

23. Tracey Johnson, Matt Bakke, and Griffin Gillespie testified they supported the 

recommendation to discharge Nneka Nwaokeafor for cause. 

 

From the foregoing Findings of Fact, the Board makes the following: 

 CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. Nneka Nwaokeafor has a teaching contract with Grand Forks Public Schools for the 2023-

2024 school year. 

2. All procedural steps required by law for the Board to consider the discharge of Nneka 

Nwaokeafor for cause have been duly taken. 

3. The evidence presented by the Administration, including Exhibits 2, 3, 4, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 

12, and 13 and the testimony of District witnesses, was credible and sufficient to establish 

insubordination as a ground for discharge, and was not refuted by the teacher, by a Board 

vote of 8 to 0. 

4. The evidence presented by the Administration, including Exhibits 3, 4, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 

12, 13, 14, and 15, and the testimony of District witnesses, was credible and sufficient to 

March 4, 2024 
Page 150 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 150 of 291



establish Nneka Nwaokeafor’s conduct unbecoming her position as a teacher/educator as 

a ground for discharge, and was not refuted by the teacher, by a Board vote of 8 to 0. 

5. Pursuant to N.D.C.C. § 15.1-15-07, insubordination and conduct unbecoming the position 

of a teacher/educator are causes for dismissing a public school teacher prior to the 

expiration of their contract. 

 From the foregoing Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, the Board issues its: 

ORDER FOR DISCHARGE 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT NNEKA NWAOKEAFOR BE, AND HEREBY IS, 

DISCHARGED FOR CAUSE AS A TEACHER IN GRAND FORKS PUBLIC SCHOOLS, 

GRAND FORKS, NORTH DAKOTA. 

 

Dated this _____ day of ________________________, 2024. 

 

SCHOOL BOARD OF GRAND FORKS 

PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

 

 

By:                                               

                                                      Amber Flynn, Board President  

 

 

March 4, 2024 
Page 151 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 151 of 291



Approved 2.19.2024 

Supt Eval Cmte 11-7-2023 

Page 1 of 1 
 

GRAND FORKS SCHOOL BOARD 

SUPERINTENDENT EVALUATION COMMITTEE 
GRAND FORKS PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT #1 

MEETING MINUTES 

November 7, 2023 
 

The Grand Forks School Board Superintendent Evaluation Committee met on Tuesday, November 7, 2023, at the 

Mark Sanford Education Center with Josh Anderson presiding. 

 

Committee Members Present: Josh Anderson, Monte Gaukler, Jeff Manley, Cynthia Shabb, and Dr. Terry Brenner. 

 

Committee Members Absent: Michelle Shepperd. 

 

Others Present: Cindy Johnson, Executive Secretary. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Call to Order. The meeting was called to order at 5:06 

p.m. 

 

Approval of Minutes. It was moved by Gaukler and 

seconded by Manley to approve the minutes of 

September 18, 2023, as written. Motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

Develop Draft Evaluation of the Superintendent’s 

Performance as per NDCC 15.1-14-03(1.a.). 

Committee members were provided a summary of the 

board member input survey. Eight of nine Grand Forks 

School Board members and four of five Grand Forks 

Air Force Base School Board members completed the 

survey. The rating scale of the evaluation instrument is 

4-Highly Effective, 3-Effective, 2-Partially Effective, and 

1-Ineffective. 

 

Brenner provided comments and reflections related to 

the survey input and narratives that board members 

provided that included recognition of the 

superintendent’s administrative team and common 

themes to look ahead for. As well, committee members 

reviewed and discussed board member narratives. 

Upon review of Board member input, the overall 

weighted average ranged from 3.42 to 3.67 in all 

domains. 

 

It was moved by Gaukler and seconded by Shabb to 

forward a draft evaluation that finds the 

superintendent’s performance to be satisfactory in all 

areas to the school board with a unanimous 

recommendation for approval.  Motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

Adjourn. The meeting was adjourned at 6:14 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

Approved ___________________________________ 

        (Date) 

 

___________________________________________ 

Josh Anderson, Meeting Chair 

March 4, 2024 
Page 152 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 152 of 291



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

Superintendent’s Evaluation – March 2024 

Board Member Input Scoring Summary 

 

Respondents were eight of nine Grand Forks School Board members and four of four Grand 

Forks Air Force Base School Board members. 

 

Area of Performance:  Leadership 

How would you classify the superintendent’s overall performance in the area of Leadership? 
 

4 - Highly Effective 3 - Effective 
2 - Partially 

Effective 
1 - Ineffective 

Weighted 

Average 

8 (66.67%) 4 (33.33%) 0 (0.00%) 0 (0.00%) 3.67 

 

Area of Performance:  Administration 

How would you classify the superintendent’s overall performance in the area of Administration? 
 

4 - Highly Effective 3 - Effective 
2 - Partially 

Effective 
1 - Ineffective 

Weighted 

Average 

9 (75.00%) 3 (25.00%) 0 (0.00%) 0 (0.00%) 3.75 

 

Area of Performance:  Curriculum and Instruction 

How would you classify the superintendent’s overall performance in the area of Curriculum and 

Instruction? 
 

4 - Highly Effective 3 - Effective 
2 - Partially 

Effective 
1 - Ineffective 

Weighted 

Average 

8 (66.67%) 3 (25.00%) 1 (8.33%) 0 (0.00%) 3.58 

 

Area of Performance:  Human Resources 

How would you classify the superintendent’s overall performance in the area of Human 

Resources? 
 

4 - Highly Effective 3 - Effective 
2 - Partially 

Effective 
1 - Ineffective 

Weighted 

Average 

6 (50.00%) 6 (50.00%) 0 (0.00%) 0 (0.00%) 3.50 

 

Area of Performance:  Communication 

How would you classify the superintendent’s overall performance in the area of Communication? 
 

4 - Highly Effective 3 - Effective 
2 - Partially 

Effective 
1 - Ineffective 

Weighted 

Average 

8 (66.67%) 3 (25.00%) 1 (8.33%) 0 (0.00%) 3.58 

March 4, 2024 
Page 153 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 153 of 291



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Strategic Plan Area 1 – Academics – High-Reliability Schools Framework 

How would you classify the superintendent’s overall implementation of Academic Engagement 

and Strategies for Student Success? 
 

4 - Highly Effective 3 - Effective 
2 - Partially 

Effective 
1 - Ineffective 

Weighted 

Average 

7 (58.33%) 4 (33.33%) 1 (8.33%) 0 (0.00%) 3.50 

 

How would you classify the superintendent’s overall implementation of Professional Learning & 

Technology? 
 

4 - Highly Effective 3 - Effective 
2 - Partially 

Effective 
1 - Ineffective 

Weighted 

Average 

8 (66.67%) 4 (33.33%) 0 (0.00%) 0 (0.00%) 3.67 

 

How would you classify the superintendent’s overall implementation of Innovation and Creativity? 
 

4 - Highly Effective 3 - Effective 
2 - Partially 

Effective 
1 - Ineffective 

Weighted 

Average 

7 (58.33%) 5 (41.67%) 0 (0.00%) 0 (0.00%) 3.58 

 

Strategic Plan Area 2 – Comprehensive School District Mental Health System 

How would you classify the superintendent’s overall implementation of Mental Health? 
 

4 - Highly Effective 3 - Effective 
2 - Partially 

Effective 
1 - Ineffective 

Weighted 

Average 

8 (66.67%) 4 (33.33%) 1 (8.33%) 0 (0.00%) 3.67 

 

How would you classify the superintendent’s overall implementation of Positive School Climate? 
 

4 - Highly Effective 3 - Effective 
2 - Partially 

Effective 
1 - Ineffective 

Weighted 

Average 

7 (58.33%) 5 (41.67%) 0 (0.00%) 0 (0.00%) 3.58 

 

How would you classify the superintendent’s overall implementation of Social-Emotional 

Learning? 
 

4 - Highly Effective 3 - Effective 
2 - Partially 

Effective 
1 - Ineffective 

Weighted 

Average 

8 (66.67%) 4 (33.33%) 0 (0.00%) 0 (0.00%) 3.67 

 

 

March 4, 2024 
Page 154 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 154 of 291



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

How would you classify the superintendent’s overall implementation of Community Engagement? 
 

4 - Highly Effective 3 - Effective 
2 - Partially 

Effective 
1 - Ineffective 

Weighted 

Average 

8 (66.67%) 4 (33.33%) 0 (0.00%) 0 (0.00%) 3.67 

 

Strategic Plan Area 3 – Resource Management and Long-Term Planning 

How would you classify the superintendent’s overall implementation of Master Facilities Planning? 
 

4 - Highly Effective 3 - Effective 
2 - Partially 

Effective 
1 - Ineffective 

Weighted 

Average 

9 (75.00%) 3 (25.00%) 0 (0.00%) 0 (0.00%) 3.75 

 

How would you classify the superintendent’s overall implementation of Long-Term Technology 

Planning? 
 

4 - Highly Effective 3 - Effective 
2 - Partially 

Effective 
1 - Ineffective 

Weighted 

Average 

9 (75.00%) 3 (25.00%) 0 (0.00%) 0 (0.00%) 3.75 

 

How would you classify the superintendent’s overall implementation of Long-Term Financial 

Planning? 
 

4 - Highly Effective 3 - Effective 
2 - Partially 

Effective 
1 - Ineffective 

Weighted 

Average 

7 (58.33%) 5 (41.67%) 0 (0.00%) 0 (0.00%) 3.58 

 

Strategic Plan Other Areas – Human Resources 

How would you classify the superintendent’s overall implementation of Human Resources? 
 

4 - Highly Effective 3 - Effective 
2 - Partially 

Effective 
1 - Ineffective 

Weighted 

Average 

6 (50.00%) 6 (50.00%) 0 (0.00%) 0 (0.00%) 3.50 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

March 4, 2024 
Page 155 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 155 of 291



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Upon review of Board member input and an overall weighted average ranging from 3.50 to 

3.75 in all domains, the Superintendent Evaluation Committee and Grand Forks School Board 

find the superintendent’s performance to be SATISFACTORY. 
 

Approved by the Grand Forks School Board on ____________________. 

 

 

_________________________     _________________________     _________________________ 

Amber Flynn, President Michelle Shepperd, President Dr. Terry Brenner 

Grand Forks School Board GFAFB School Board Superintendent of Schools 

Grand Forks PSD #1 GFAFB PSD #140 

 

_________________________     _________________________     _________________________ 

Date Date Date 

 

 

 

 

March 4, 2024 
Page 156 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 156 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

1 / 120

Q1 Board Member Name:
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

# RESPONSES DATE

1 Base Board Michelle Shepperd 2/15/2024 10:04 PM

2 Cynthia Shabb 2/15/2024 2:13 PM

3 Joel Larson 2/14/2024 4:45 PM

4 Base Board Branden Shepperd 2/14/2024 10:49 AM

5 Josh Anderson 2/13/2024 10:22 PM

6 Eric Lunn 2/13/2024 5:34 PM

7 Dave Berger 2/13/2024 2:55 PM

8 Base Board Arielle Neumann 2/12/2024 10:51 AM

9 Monte Gaukler 2/11/2024 9:01 PM

10 Base Board Jennifer Rivera 2/8/2024 7:07 PM

11 Jeff Manley 2/8/2024 1:36 PM

12 Bill Palmiscno 2/8/2024 10:57 AM

March 4, 2024 
Page 157 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 157 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

2 / 120

75.00% 9

25.00% 3

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q2 Facilitates school board planning, policy, and monitoring functions.Dr.
Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:November 2023:Meets weekly with Board
leadership Flynn and Berger to discuss board agenda items among other
emerging or just-in-time FYIs. With and through Cindy Johnson, Policy

Review meetings are scheduled.  In advance of those meetings, the
Executive Cabinet works through and wordsmiths policies to be reviewed
by the board’s Policy Committee.  Thus, recommendations come from the
superintendent and Executive Cabinet. Typically, the aforementioned group

spends hours on policies before being sent on to the committee.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

# DR. BRENNER'S NARRATIVE OF EVIDENCE DATE

 There are no responses.  

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 158 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 158 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

3 / 120

75.00% 9

25.00% 3

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q3 Establishes expectations, operational guidelines, and practices that
support the realization of the district’s mission and goals.Dr. Brenner's

Narrative of Evidence:November 2023:Through weekly superintendents’
meetings, Executive Cabinet, and Administrative Cabinet meetings,

expectations tied to the district strategic plan’s big buckets of Academics,
Mental Health Systems, and Resource and Facility Management and HRS

are clearly delineated.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 159 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 159 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

4 / 120

58.33% 7

41.67% 5

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q4 Facilitates staff and Board familiarity with current trends, issues, and
practices in education at the local, state, and national levels.Dr. Brenner's
Narrative of Evidence:November 2023:Through Friday Focus and weekly

videos, the superintendent highlights national trends and other topics
“worth mentioning”.  Further, the superintendent serves on the North

Dakota Association of School Administrators Board of Directors playing a
leadership role in the Northeast Region of the state and facilitating two-way

communication between the region and state.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 160 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 160 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

5 / 120

75.00% 9

25.00% 3

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q5 Serves as superintendent of Grand Forks Air Force Base Public
School District #140 as fulfillment of the Joint Powers Agreement

established by GFPSD #1 and GFAFB PSD #140.Dr. Brenner's Narrative
of Evidence:February 2024:Yes 😊November 2023:Yes 😊

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 161 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 161 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

6 / 120

58.33% 7

33.33% 4

8.33% 1

0.00% 0

Q6 Represents the school district in legislative matters and government
relations.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:November 2023:Attends

weekly North Dakota Council of Educational Leaders meetings that discuss
legislative topics, and Century Code interpretations, and frequently network

with local legislators on topics relevant to the school district.  Examples
during the last legislative session were personal testimony on increasing

the weighted metric for special education students with additional
collaborative efforts opposing topics such as “culture war” legislative issues

(banning books, transgender policy).  Further, the superintendent
participated in lobbying for increased foundation aid to the tune of 8% in

year 1 and 8% in year two.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 162 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 162 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

7 / 120

Q7 Participates in civic organizations and affairs.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of
Evidence:February 2024:Superintendent serves on the interagency

committee (UND, City, Park Board, School District) for the new Aquatics &
Turf facility recently approved through a city-wide referendum.  It is now

public knowledge that UND’s Hyslop Pool will remain functional for GFPS
swim teams through March 2025, thus one more full season.  Central’s
pool will be refilled later this spring to see if it will be functional for the

interim period of the fall of 2025 through 2026 for swim teams and public
swimming lessons along with other potential rental

agreements.Superintendent will provide an update to the Base Retention
and Investment Committee (BRIC) on the new Twining School project

(along with the Career Impact Academy, Valley Middle School, and Central
Kitchen).November 2023:DC Board of Directors (Ex-Officio), UND’s

Education and Human Development Fundraising Committee, Member of
“Team Grand Forks” regarding legislative issues, member of GF Herald

Altru’s Business Leadership Committee, Advisory Committee, Chamber of
Commerce Business & Government Affairs Committee, The Beacon
Advisory Committee, active member in UND’s Alumni Association.

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 163 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 163 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

8 / 120

66.67% 8

33.33% 4

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

TOTAL 12

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 164 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 164 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

9 / 120

50.00% 6

50.00% 6

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q8 Serves as an affiliate with state and national professional
organizations.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:November 2023:NDASA

Board of Directors, Red River Valley Education Cooperative Board of
Directors (lead administrator), American Association of School

Administrators.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 165 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 165 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

10 / 120

50.00% 6

50.00% 6

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q9 Coordinates joint efforts with such agencies as the Park Board and the
City of Grand Forks.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:November

2023:The superintendent facilitates and attends “Big 5” quarterly meetings
between the school district, City, County, Airport Authority, and Park

District where information is shared collaboratively.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 166 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 166 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

11 / 120

Q10 How would you classify the superintendent's overall performance in
the area of Leadership?

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

66.67%
8

33.33%
4

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
12

 
3.67

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly Effec… Effective (3) Partially Eff… Ineffective (1)

(no label)

 HIGHLY EFFECTIVE
(4)

EFFECTIVE
(3)

PARTIALLY EFFECTIVE
(2)

INEFFECTIVE
(1)

TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

(no
label)

March 4, 2024 
Page 167 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 167 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

12 / 120

Q11 Please share any other comments you have below:
Answered: 7 Skipped: 5

# RESPONSES DATE

1 I appreciate the successful efforts made to connect relationships not only between the two
boards but amongst the schools in the district as well as the community. Dr. Brenner realizes
the importance of these relations and how they are mutually beneficial to the future of the
community in which he serves. Updates are not only provided on an ongoing basis but
invitations to join joint meetings with the "Big 5". These avenues strengthen the ability to make
crucial decisions about the district and its needs.

2/15/2024 10:13 PM

2 Dr. Brenner’s leadership is apparent in many areas. The establishment of operational
guidelines and practices has been very clear and followed.

2/13/2024 10:22 PM

3 Dr. Brenner has exceptional leadership skills that has served the district tremendously during
these last few years of extreme turbulence.

2/13/2024 5:42 PM

4 There have been no updates on legislative matters, my opinion is that Dr. Brenner and the
District should take a student, and parent focused approach when engaging future legislative
sessions. The previous focus, in my opinion was more concerned with the needs of School
Administrators and District Employees as opposed to being focused primarily on families and
children. The progress for the new Twining School is satisfactory and I appreciate transparency
with updates. No further comments.

2/12/2024 11:05 AM

5 Dr. Brenner maintains a very active schedule to create and support community relations with
several organizations and entities.

2/11/2024 9:06 PM

6 Appreciate the work he does on all of the additional boards and committees. North Dakota
Association of School Administrators Board of Directors, North Dakota Council of Educational
Leaders, DC Board of Directors (Ex-Officio), UND’s Education and Human Development
Fundraising Committee, Member of “Team Grand Forks”, GF Herald Altru’s Business
Leadership Committee, Advisory Committee, Chamber of Commerce Business & Government
Affairs Committee, The Beacon Advisory Committee, UND’s Alumni Association, NDASA
Board of Directors, Red River Valley Education Cooperative Board of Directors, American
Association of School Administrators.

2/8/2024 1:58 PM

7 Dr. Brenner has led the School District through the Valley Middle/Central Kitchen referendum,
also on the salaries negotiations.

2/8/2024 11:03 AM

March 4, 2024 
Page 168 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 168 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

13 / 120

66.67% 8

33.33% 4

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q12 Plans school board meetings, prepares reports, and advises the
school board on policies and actions.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of

Evidence:November 2023:A comprehensive school board agenda(s) shell
is created in July of each year that clearly lays out necessary timelines for
specific topics.  As a result of the Be Legendary school board training in
June 2023, Board Education topics will be enhanced with more focus on

student outcomes shared with the school board.  Continued refinement of
“consent agenda” items will continue to gain more efficiency in school

board meetings allowing for more academic information to be present.  An
example of a recent policy adjustment was the liquidated damages policy

tied to contracted staff resigning within a school year.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 169 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 169 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

14 / 120

75.00% 9

25.00% 3

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q13 Implements rules, regulations, and policies of the school board
through direction and delegation of the administrative staff.Dr. Brenner's

Narrative of Evidence:November 2023:Through various Cabinet meetings,
Joint Administrative meetings (all K-12 administrators), and specific
principal meetings, updated board policies are discussed and can, at

times, drive information that goes into student handbooks.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 170 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 170 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

15 / 120

Q14 Maintains safe and educationally appropriate school buildings and
sites. Develops long-range site and facility plans.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of
Evidence:November 2023:Through the latest work of ICON’s walkthroughs

of each of our schools, a comprehensive list was generated relative to
facility priorities that included safety and security, laid out roofing projects,
and anticipation of when a next referendum may be put before taxpayers. 
Further, the 10 mills approved by voters in September 2021, generated a
new $2.6 million of which we bonded $1 million over 20 years to free up

$14.4 million for major HVAC upgrades.Projects completed in the summer
of 2023:Viking ElementaryBen Franklin ElementaryWilder

ElementaryCushman Track and Field (Altru Corporate
Sponsorship)Projects scheduled for summer, 2024:Lewis & Clark

ElementaryLake Agassiz ElementaryKelly ElementaryProjects previously
completed using ESSER dollars:Central High School HVACRed River High
School HVAC/Air CompressorsCentury Elementary School upgraded the

chiller and boiler
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 171 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 171 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

16 / 120

75.00% 9

25.00% 3

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

TOTAL 12

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 172 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 172 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

17 / 120

66.67% 8

33.33% 4

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q15 Organizes the business affairs of the school system and makes
annual budget recommendations. Signs employment, service, and

purchase contracts on behalf of the district.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of
Evidence:November 2023:The Superintendent participated in all contract

negotiating sessions as a resource member for the school board. 
Negotiating sessions were held with GFEA, GFPA, GFDA, and Classified

Staff in the spring and summer of 2023.  Through the HR Department,
contracts were generated, signed, and implemented.  The superintendent

works closely with the Business Manager on “all things budget” in
preparation for each fiscal year.  Comprehensive budget planning moving
forward is a budget reduction process with a goal of $2-4 million over the

next two fiscal years to balance the ledger with a two-year $7 million
increase for all staff.

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 173 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 173 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

18 / 120

66.67% 8

33.33% 4

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q16 Administers the Impact Aid Program.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of
Evidence:November 2023:Through legislative work two sessions ago, the
school district will eventually see a $3 million revenue stream due to our
advocacy to change the Century Code.  We are presently in year 3 of

seeing an annual positive net impact of $350,000 with the full realization of
Impact Aid in 2026.  This will be a critical funding piece for a new Twining

School build within the next two years.  Business Manager Brandon
Baumbach, who reports directly to the superintendent, is front and center

with Impact Aid.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 174 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 174 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

19 / 120

75.00% 9

25.00% 3

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q17 Submits reports to the Department of Public Instruction and various
federal agencies.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:November

2023:Through the STARS state reporting system, all reports have been
submitted on or before applicable deadlines.

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 175 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 175 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

20 / 120

Q18 How would you classify the superintendent’s overall performance in
the area of Administration?

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

75.00%
9

25.00%
3

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
12

 
3.75

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly Effec… Effective (3) Partially Eff… Ineffective (1)

(no label)

 HIGHLY EFFECTIVE
(4)

EFFECTIVE
(3)

PARTIALLY EFFECTIVE
(2)

INEFFECTIVE
(1)

TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

(no
label)

March 4, 2024 
Page 176 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 176 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

21 / 120

Q19 Please share any other comments you have below:
Answered: 7 Skipped: 5

# RESPONSES DATE

1 Dr. Brenner leads an effective team. Decisions are well thought through to ensure allocations
of funds are dispersed equitably throughout the district. Decisions are based on a well-informed
process with not only staff of the district and individual schools in mind, but the district as the
whole.

2/15/2024 10:20 PM

2 While this year has been busy, we need to keep reviewing policies. I know there is an
upcoming meeting of the policy review committee. Special attention needs to be given for the
one we implemented last year regarding a time when teachers break their contracts.

2/15/2024 2:16 PM

3 Dr. Brenner demonstrates a high level of administrative function. The regular updates provided
and continual flow of information along with pointing to policy in necessary situations is highly
effective. Along with that he operational work on budget challenges and directives provided by
the board are providing a positive motion forward with a look to the future.

2/13/2024 10:22 PM

4 Dr. Brenner has superb administrative skills. 2/13/2024 5:42 PM

5 The new Twining School Project funding is an area of top concern, I appreciate the
transparency in updates. No concerns.

2/12/2024 11:07 AM

6 As we continue to learn more, I will be eager to have more academic information presented at
meetings. This was a goal that was set when we met with the "Be Legendary" school board
training. The planning and preparations for school safety and maintenance are comprehensive
and will provide important goal posts as time goes on. I'm really glad that all schools will soon
have air-conditioning, and that a comprehensive safety plan for all schools is being worked on.

2/11/2024 9:25 PM

7 I appreciate that we have a comprehensive list of repairs dur to the work on the long-range site
and facility plan.

2/8/2024 2:00 PM

March 4, 2024 
Page 177 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 177 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

22 / 120

Q20 Facilitates organization and evaluation of classroom and
extracurricular programs.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:February

2024:Chief Academic Officer Amy Bartsch, Assistant Superintendent Matt
Bakke, Associate Superintendent Catherine Gillach, and Superintendent

participate in bi-weekly “Learning Walks” where the 4 spend time in
classrooms across the district, with principals, monitoring curriculum
implementation.  These are 2-3 hour school visits which have been

productive for two reasons: 1) monitoring curriculum implementation; 2)
being visible in and connected with school personnel.November 2023:The

superintendent is the direct supervisor of Chief Academic Officer Amy
Bartsch who meets weekly with the superintendent.   CAO is responsible

for overseeing MTSS Coordinators and District Assessment Coordinator to
ensure professional development and just-in-time training align with

learning gaps illustrated by data.Through the restructuring of the district
athletics department more than a year ago, the district now has a District
Activities Coordinator in concert with Athletic Directors at each of the high
schools—a model that did not exist previously.  While the superintendent

doesn’t take credit for the remarkable co- and extra-curricular success last
school year as a result of the restructure, testimonial and anecdotal

conversations with coaches and building-level principals suggest that the
model, based on having Athletic Directors at each high school, there is

more intimate oversight of the aforementioned at the building level.  Last
year, Red River girls basketball won the state tournament; Red River boys

basketball finished runner-up in the state tournament; Red River boys
hockey finished runner-up in the state tournament; both Central and Red

River girls qualified for the state softball tournament (Central—the first time
in a long, long time!); both high school girls and boys track teams faired

well at the state meet; both girls and boys cross country teams scored well
at the state meet; Central boys tennis just won the state tournament; Red

River girls golf finished runner-up at the state meet missing the
championship by one stroke and the list goes on.Summer Performing Arts

saw record numbers of participants from elementary to secondary to
special needs.
Answered: 11 Skipped: 1

March 4, 2024 
Page 178 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 178 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

23 / 120

54.55% 6

45.45% 5

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

TOTAL 11

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 179 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 179 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

24 / 120

Q21 Arranges for the coordination and integration of technology into all
instructional and management functions.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of

Evidence:February 2024:  With the support of the Finance Committee and
the full school board, the Information Technology position will be filled by

Darin King effective July 1, 2024.  Mr. King has already begun his work as
he has been looped into conversations that will serve him and his

department well when he officially commences duties.November 2023:With
our one-to-one device initiative, ESSER dollars were used to augment and

update close to $2 million worth of technology.  CTE & Technology
Executive Director Eric Ripley has a formalized plan for replacement

moving forward as we continue with lease agreements that best meet the
financial and academic needs of the district.   More conversation will take
place at the board level about the possibility of a virtual secondary school

—a stand-alone campus with its own name, enrollment, branding, etc.
Answered: 11 Skipped: 1

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 180 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 180 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

25 / 120

63.64% 7

36.36% 4

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

TOTAL 11

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 181 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 181 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

26 / 120

54.55% 6

45.45% 5

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q22 Organizes an appropriate system of assessment of all students’
progress.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:November 2023:Chief

Academic Officer Amy Bartsch, under the direction of the superintendent,
uses a variety of assessment platforms (STAR, NDSA, ACT) and other
formative assessments as predictors of student success in criterion or

norm-referenced assessments.  Through the PLC/MTSS Early Release
schedule, there are district expectations and learning standards as per the

Be Legendary School Board training (identifying Literacy and Math as
district-level academic goals all the while monitoring other subgroup data

such as a low Native American graduation rate and monitoring the percent
of students qualifying for special education.

Answered: 11 Skipped: 1

TOTAL 11

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 182 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 182 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

27 / 120

Q23 Cooperates with other local, state, and national educational agencies
that influence curriculum and instruction.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of

Evidence:February 2024:Superintendent participated in the North Dakota
Association of School Administrators Conference January 28-30, 2024. 
Superintendent served as a panelist regarding teacher burnout, retention

and recruitment and facilitated round table discussions around the topics of
school board meetings/agendas and the non-renewal process.  Further,
Superintendent serves as one of two superintendents on the Red River
Valley Education Cooperative (RRVEC) leadership council.November

2023:Same response from the Leadership domain (attends weekly North
Dakota Council of Educational Leaders meetings that discuss legislative
topics, Century Code interpretations, and frequently network with local

legislators on topics relevant to the school district.  Examples during the
last legislative session were personal testimony on increasing the weighted

metric for special education students with additional collaborative efforts
opposing topics such as “culture war” legislative issues (banning books,
transgender policy).  Further, the superintendent participated in lobbying
for increased foundation aid to the tune of 8% in year 1 and 8% in year

two.) 
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 183 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 183 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

28 / 120

66.67% 8

33.33% 4

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

TOTAL 12

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 184 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 184 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

29 / 120

Q24 How would you classify the superintendent’s overall performance in
the area of Curriculum and Instruction?

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

66.67%
8

25.00%
3

8.33%
1

0.00%
0

 
12

 
3.58

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly Effec… Effective (3) Partially Eff… Ineffective (1)

(no label)

 HIGHLY EFFECTIVE
(4)

EFFECTIVE
(3)

PARTIALLY EFFECTIVE
(2)

INEFFECTIVE
(1)

TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

(no
label)

March 4, 2024 
Page 185 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 185 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

30 / 120

Q25 Please share any other comments you have below:
Answered: 6 Skipped: 6

# RESPONSES DATE

1 This is an area of strength. The superintendent realizes the importance of up to date resources
regarding instruction.

2/15/2024 2:18 PM

2 I am happy to see this area continuing to be a focus. With the many pieces of Dr. Brenner's
day, the importance of finding time to focus on this is great. I am excited to continue to see
this grow and watch curriculum adoptions, testing to provide data, and implementation of
methods to address curricular challenges become rewarding for students. This all can help us
meet education goals set by the board.

2/13/2024 10:23 PM

3 As it pertains to the area of performance in curriculum and instruction, for the 2023-2024
Superintendent Professional Goal of: “ A. GFPS will increase district-wide student ELA
proficiency levels from 46% to 51% B. GFPS will increase district-wide student mathematical
proficiency levels from 40% to 45%.” I look forward to updates on these goals. Additionally, if
there will be evidence to support continued utilization of a Cultural Competence mindset with a
Diversity Equity and Inclusivity Committee when developing curriculum. At this time I am not
convinced it is effective. Finally, district-wide proficiency levels are currently not at ideal
numbers as anything bellow 60-70% in my opinion should not be considered highly effective,
highly effective would be 80-90%. In order for me to consider the Superintendent to be highly
effective for curriculum and instruction, proficiency levels would need to dramatically increase.

2/12/2024 11:20 AM

4 Thank you for participating in "learning walks" as I think that these walks are important for
many reasons. I'm also happpy to see that SPA was highlighted. I think that SPA is one of the
premiere programs of our school district.

2/11/2024 9:31 PM

5 Very interested in the possibility of a virtual secondary school. 2/8/2024 2:07 PM

6 Darin King will be a great hire to direct our IT Department, the Be Legendary Training has
helped the School Board move forward with our academic goals.

2/8/2024 11:11 AM

March 4, 2024 
Page 186 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 186 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

31 / 120

Q26 Oversees the development of a comprehensive personnel system
that provides policies, procedures, and authority for recruitment,

employment, supervision, evaluation, and termination practices related to
all positions in the district.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:November
2023:As the direct supervisor of the HR Director, the superintendent is

engaged weekly in processes and protocols related to personnel.  The e-
platform for personnel records was actually completed under the

superintendent’s direction as the former Director of Curriculum, Instruction,
Assessment & Professional Development so the superintendent is
intimately familiar with the platform iObservation.  Moreover, the

superintendent approved a new HR Generalist position understanding that
3 FTEs cannot adequately support 1,600 people on payroll.  The

superintendent also approved an HR intern who worked full-time last
summer dealing with updating records and who continues to work with us

this academic year on more of a part-time basis as she is a senior in
college majoring in HR Management.

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 187 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 187 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

32 / 120

58.33% 7

41.67% 5

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

TOTAL 12

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 188 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 188 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

33 / 120

50.00% 6

50.00% 6

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q27 Organizes and supervises the administrative team, delegating tasks in
an efficient manner.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:November

2023:Due to the superintendent’s weekly meeting with the HR Director,
there is plenty of delegation related to attracting and maintaining high-

quality staff, ongoing conversations about the negotiated agreement and
interpretation of new language, and approving or not approving unique

leave requests from across the district.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 189 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 189 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

34 / 120

33.33% 4

66.67% 8

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q28 Oversees the employment, supervision, and evaluation of all
employees.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:November 2023:The

superintendent is responsible to supervise and evaluate those under his
direction.  All department heads and/or building principals are responsible

for staff evaluations.  HR serves as the gatekeeper/monitor of those yearly
tasks.

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 190 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 190 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

35 / 120

58.33% 7

41.67% 5

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q29 Plans staff development activities designed to maximize student
learning and teacher effectiveness.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of

Evidence:November 2023:Data used to drive professional development is
entrusted to Chief Academic Officer Amy Bartsch who reports directly to

the superintendent.  She, along with her department of Instructional
Coaches, Curriculum Coordinators, and MTSS Coordinators, have already
addressed the pandemic’s influence on learning gaps.  All told, with high-
dosage tutoring and with the training provided on the science of reading,

learning gaps have closed rapidly.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 191 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 191 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

36 / 120

50.00% 6

50.00% 6

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q30 Expedites school board salary negotiations with employee groups.Dr.
Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:November 2023:The superintendent

cannot take credit for the last round of “expedited negotiations” as there
was a series of meetings with the teachers and principals transpiring over
months rather than weeks.  That said, what the board was able to achieve
with all groups was remarkable and historic in terms of total compensation

packages which included paid parental leave.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 192 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 192 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

37 / 120

Q31 How would you classify the superintendent’s overall performance in
the area of Human Resources?

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

50.00%
6

50.00%
6

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
12

 
3.50

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly Effec… Effective (3) Partially Eff… Ineffective (1)

(no label)

 HIGHLY EFFECTIVE
(4)

EFFECTIVE
(3)

PARTIALLY EFFECTIVE
(2)

INEFFECTIVE
(1)

TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

(no
label)

March 4, 2024 
Page 193 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 193 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

38 / 120

Q32 Please share any other comments you have below:
Answered: 4 Skipped: 8

# RESPONSES DATE

1 I would enjoy seeing more information about staff development activities. 2/13/2024 10:23 PM

2 No concerns. 2/12/2024 11:21 AM

3 Dr Brenner is making great strides in attracting and maintaining high-quality staff! 2/8/2024 2:09 PM

4 Dr. Brenner and Amy Bartsch with their team has help close the our learning gap created by
the pandemic.

2/8/2024 11:17 AM

March 4, 2024 
Page 194 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 194 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

39 / 120

Q33 Operates a community-wide public information program that includes
meetings with members of the media.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of

Evidence:February 2024:Continually ongoing.  The district effectively
utilizes a combination of communication strategies including BlackBoard

Connect in pushing information to our families both at the district and
school level, along with maintaining the district websites, mobile app, and

social media accounts.  The district website has transitioned over to
Finalsite, to both update the webpages and ensure they meet accessibility
requirements.A ”Need to Know” communication is sent out each Monday

to all staff from the Communications Department.  This, in concert with the
Superintendent’s Friday Focus and weekly video, provides several
touchpoints of communication each week to internal school district

stakeholders.November 2023:The superintendent avails himself to the
media, most notably the GF Herald, KNOX Radio, and WDAY TV.  There
has been engagement with KVLY TV as well.  Important to note is the GF
Herald editor, beat reporter, and KNOX newsmen have my personal cell

number and contact me directly for just-in-time information or interviews.  It
should also be noted that the Communications Department has undergone

a reboot with the departure of the former Communications Coordinator. 
The district webpage will be rebranded and more aggressive marketing
plans will be front and center.  As one example, the Communications

Department has highlighted one principal per day during October on the
district’s Facebook page.  Both colleagues (Melissa Bakke & Alexis
Loomer) are aggressively seeking photo and digital opportunities by
spending time IN SCHOOLS.   The superintendent meets with this

department each Monday for intentional interfacing.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

March 4, 2024 
Page 195 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 195 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

40 / 120

75.00% 9

25.00% 3

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 196 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 196 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

41 / 120

Q34 Maintains communications with officials at the Grand Forks Air Force
Base and Grand Forks Air Force Base School District #140 School

Board.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:February 2024:For the first time
in his tenure, the Superintendent led a “District Report to the Community”
breakfast/presentation at the Alerus Center on October 25, 2023.  Over
150 community members registered through the GF/EGF Chamber of

Commerce, Central & Red River High School students participated through
the singing of the Star Spangled Banner, Drum Line, a solo vocalist from

last summer’s Mama Mia SPA performance, along with a duet that
included Board member Berger’s participation via lead guitar

(superintendent played along as well).  The Chamber Board of Directors
voted the next day to continue facilitating this endeavor which is scheduled

for November 14, 2024.The superintendent goes on KNOX every 2-3
weeks to provide updates and to take calls and text messages from

listeners. Business Manager Brandon Baumbach has been central to this
endeavor as well.November 2023:During the past two years, there has
been more intentional engagement with GFAFB leadership, particularly
with now retired Col Tim Curry, new Wing Commander Col Tim Monroe,
Col Del Rivera, and Col David Castor.  Due to the potential new Twining
School build, there has been great synergy between the superintendent

and the aforementioned. Further, there is frequent interfacing with District
140 School Board President Michelle Shepperd which included our

collective travels together to Alexandria, VA, to pitch a new school project. 
District 140 board members are kept apprised of weather-related decisions

in advance of formal announcements and are communicated with
regarding just-in-time information (example: Hatton/Northwood bus

accident that involved former Twining principal).It should also be noted that
the superintendent has conversations with all board members regarding

any topic that needs clarification, review, or simply a deeper conversation. 
All board members are apprised of anticipated weather-related decisions

before formalized communications going to staff and families.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

March 4, 2024 
Page 197 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 197 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

42 / 120

83.33% 10

16.67% 2

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 198 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 198 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

43 / 120

58.33% 7

41.67% 5

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q35 Maintains communications with building and district personnel.Dr.
Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:November 2023:Through the Teacher

Advisory Council, Cabinet meetings, and Joint Admin meetings, the
superintendent is present.  The superintendent provides a weekly video

update for all 1,600 employees along with providing “Friday Focus” for both
school boards and all administrators (this also goes to the media as per
their request).  The Communications Department pushes out a “Need to
Know” each Monday to all staff that includes relevant district information.

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 199 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 199 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

44 / 120

Q36 Collaborates with other educational and social agencies in the
community.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:February 2024:  The

superintendent collaborated with both UND and Mayville State University
on the “Para to Teacher” grant application submitted to the state.  Mayville
State was chosen as one of the universities to participate under the grant,

was afforded $100,000 and will enroll 4 Grand Forks Public Schools’
paraprofessionals in their program.  Thus, we will have four future teachers

in the pipeline.The superintendent completed teaching the first course
during the first semester (Leadership & Organizational Behavior) for the

UND/GFPS Master’s in Teaching and Leadership partnership.The
superintendent is teaching American Sign Language the spring semester
at UND as the university strategizes to reinstate ASL and Deaf Studies as

those classes/ Deaf Studies Program were eliminated due to budget
reductions in 2017.November 2023:Just this year, GFPS and UND entered

into an empirical partnership standing up a new UND-District Master of
Science in Teaching & Leadership Program—Thank you to UND’s Dr.
Laura Link, Dr. Joel Schleicher, and district leadership for collaborative

efforts in standing up this program specifically designed for GFPS
teachers.  With 16 GFPS teachers enrolled as the inaugural graduate

school class, UND has waived 20% of the tuition and the school district is
sponsoring textbooks and online platforms to assist financially.  Students
are taking 2 courses per semester with 13 different certification pathways
and all of them have me for their Intro to Leadership and Organizational

Behavior class. Trust me, the pressure is on ME, not them.  Another way
we have addressed the teacher shortage is through international talent.  2

years ago, we stood up the District to be an H1B sponsoring school
district.  And over the course of 2 years, this has yielded 37 international
teachers landing in our school district.  Domestic talent is always our first

priority; however, the applicant pools have been small and sometimes,
nonexistent.

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

March 4, 2024 
Page 200 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 200 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

45 / 120

66.67% 8

33.33% 4

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 201 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 201 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

46 / 120

50.00% 6

41.67% 5

8.33% 1

0.00% 0

Q37 Encourages and promotes parent involvement in the schools.Dr.
Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:February 2024:  The superintendent

provided a tour of Central High School for a new family considering a move
to Grand Forks.  Their “thank you” note suggested they will be arriving

soon. November 2023:The superintendent met with all PTOs last school
year leading up to the May 16 referendum.  Further, Title I school

principals are required to have a parent involvement plan with the use of
Title I federal dollars.  The superintendent has communicated to parents

through video pushes and has encouraged parents to meet personally with
him (and that has happened frequently) if they share a concern. 
Superintendent personally recruited new students through parent

conversation and those students moved from private schools to GFPS.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 202 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 202 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

47 / 120

58.33% 7

41.67% 5

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q38 Organizes public forums as appropriate to work on specific local
education issues.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:November

2023:Every other even-numbered year, the superintendent schedules and
facilitates a comprehensive Public Forum that exceeds the state

requirement.  Further, if the spring of 2023 had been an even number year,
the number of public presentations the superintendent made engaged

public participants about the May 16, 2023 referendum.  All told, between
presentations and media spots, the superintendent engaged the public 64
times from March 1 to May 15.  The 2024 public forum is scheduled for

March 25.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 203 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 203 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

48 / 120

58.33% 7

41.67% 5

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q39 Develops communication systems with state and federal agencies as
well as local, state, and federal legislators.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of

Evidence:November 2023:During the last legislative session, the
superintendent engaged frequently with local legislators either in person,

by phone, or by text messaging.  Further, with a new Twining School build
on the horizon, the superintendent invited several legislators, GFAGB
community ambassadors, and other city leaders to enlist support and
commitments for a portion of the 20% match District 140 will need to

secure.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 204 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 204 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

49 / 120

Q40 How would you classify the superintendent’s overall performance in
the area of Communication?

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

66.67%
8

25.00%
3

8.33%
1

0.00%
0

 
12

 
3.58

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly Effec… Effective Partially Eff… Ineffective

(no label)

 HIGHLY EFFECTIVE EFFECTIVE PARTIALLY EFFECTIVE INEFFECTIVE TOTAL WEIGHTED AVERAGE

(no label)

March 4, 2024 
Page 205 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 205 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

50 / 120

Q41 Please share any other comments you have below:
Answered: 8 Skipped: 4

# RESPONSES DATE

1 Dr. Brenners communications to the staff of the district are never short of highly effective,
thoughtful and all encompassing. Between the 'Need to Know', 'Friday Focus', 'Weekly
Message' staff are communicated with with information pertaining to the district, themselves
and the local/national news. Longevity and development of staff is highly encouraged and
supported through trainings, communications and opportunities to grow. The continued positive
and impactful relationship despite constant change of command at GFAFB has never lacked
always ensuring the growth, safety and future of the military base and its families as they
come through the district. Safety of staff and families commuting to work/school is always
present when there could be possible impacts to their drive during winter.

2/15/2024 10:35 PM

2 The superintendent is often out in the community and at UND. This is great. The more people
see him, the better. Teachers appreciate administrator’s presence and visibility.

2/15/2024 2:21 PM

3 I appreciate the continued communication improvements. I feel there is still room to improve
on website use.

2/13/2024 10:24 PM

4 Br. Brenner has many strong leadership skills, with communication being one of his strongest
skills.

2/13/2024 5:46 PM

5 My recommendation is to focus on parents and students more than school administrators,
district employees, and faculty for 2024 interactions with State Legislatives and for policy
developments.

2/12/2024 11:24 AM

6 The breakfast at the Alerus was a great way to identify and share all of the great things that
are happening in the school district. I think that this should be continued.

2/11/2024 9:44 PM

7 Dr. Brenner attempts to engage members of the community to become involved in their
childrens education.

2/8/2024 2:14 PM

8 Continue to add additional communication ideas to (District Report to the Community this
year), to kept the community updated on the District.

2/8/2024 11:22 AM

March 4, 2024 
Page 206 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 206 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

51 / 120

Q42 Goal 1 - Effective Teaching in Every Classroom.Effective teaching in
every classroom will be defined by a common language for instructional
practices and strategies. Effective teaching in every school is defined by

the myriad conditions a teacher creates for learning.Dr. Brenner's Narrative
of Evidence:Strategies:1.     School leaders (principals) will communicate a

clear vision as to how teachers should address instruction in the school.
High-Reliability Schools leading indicator 2.1.February 2024:Each school

continues to monitor and work alongside their teacher to revisit and
reaffirm their building's instructional framework.2.     Support will be

provided to teachers to continually enhance their pedagogical skills through
reflection and professional growth plans. High-Reliability Schools leading
indicator 2.2.February 2024:Complete but continually revisited, revised,

and affirmed.  Teachers receive feedback through the iObservation
platform on their professional growth goals.  Principals provided evidence
of progress and coaching on the goal areas in a non-evaluative manner
throughout this academic year.  Principals are using new guidelines to
ensure more feedback is given throughout the year.3.     Predominant

instructional practices throughout the school will be known and monitored.
High-Reliability Schools leading indicator 2.3.February 2024:Complete but

continually revisited, revised, and affirmed.  Staff participated in
instructional rounds throughout this academic year. Administrators have
been collecting evidence of predominant instructional practices through

their observations of teachers and staff.  This information is collected and
available for review in the iObservation platform. Principals are using new
guidelines to ensure more feedback is given throughout the course of the

year.4.     Teachers will be provided with clear, ongoing evaluations of their
pedagogical strengths and weaknesses that are based on multiple sources
of data and are consistent with student achievement data. High-Reliability
Schools leading indicator 2.4.November 2023: Complete but continually
revisited, revised, and affirmed. Campus-level leadership provides clear

ongoing evaluations for each teacher.  Guidelines for frequency of
observations have been set by the GFPS Teacher Evaluation Committee. 

Principals are using new guidelines to ensure more feedback is given
throughout the course of the year.5.  Grand Forks Public Schools will

provide ongoing and continued support to teachers and administrators to
attain High-Reliability Level 2 Certification.February 2024:Complete but

March 4, 2024 
Page 207 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 207 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

52 / 120

75.00% 9

25.00% 3

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

continually revisited, revised, and affirmed. Campus-level leadership
provides clear ongoing evaluations for

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 208 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 208 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

53 / 120

Q43 Goal 2 – Emphasize cultural competence in our K-12
curriculum.Cultural Competence is a mindset, a worldview, a way a person

or an organization makes assumptions for effectively describing,
responding to, and planning for issues that arise in diverse environments.
Cultural proficiency is a paradigm shift from viewing cultural differences as
problematic to learning how to interact effectively with a variety of cultures.

Therefore, as a result of our efforts, students and staff will accept and
respect the diversity of gender, race, culture, and age differences.Dr.

Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:Strategies:1.     Update our curriculum
review process to include a section on diversity and

representation.February 2024:Complete but continually revisited, revised,
and affirmed.  The curriculum team created an adoption form for the
review of curriculum.  The form was revised to include more student

perception of the new resources along with teacher feedback.November
2023 Update: Complete but continually revisited, revised, and affirmed.

 The curriculum team created an adoption form for the review of
curriculum.  The form was revised to include more student perception of

the new resources along with teacher feedback.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 209 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 209 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

54 / 120

58.33% 7

33.33% 4

8.33% 1

0.00% 0

TOTAL 12

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 210 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 210 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

55 / 120

Q44 Goal 3 - Provide district staff, principals, and teachers with
professional development to help them assess their own cultural

viewpoints and biases and effectively engage diverse families and
community members.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:February

2024:Several district leaders are involved with a “Courageous Leadership
Institute” that focuses on the deep work of Diversity, Equity, Inclusivity and
Belonging.  Some leaders are in Year 1 while others are in Year 2 of this

work.Regarding academic engagement and strategies for student success,
the board has heard student achievement updates from Chief Academic

Officer Amy Barstch along with schools reporting their data under
“Celebrating Success”.  A most recent example at the board table was
Viking Elementary School’s update on the positive trajectory student
achievement was on while focusing on absenteeism of one specific

subgroup, of which, has improved through intentional monitoring and
establishing deep relationships with applicable families. December

2022:Professional development concerning Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and
Belonging continues to happen with administrators at Joint Administration

meetings. This work takes on the form of data review and analysis by
student groups, as well as modeling various strategies for leaders to use

with their staff.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 211 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 211 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

56 / 120

41.67% 5

50.00% 6

8.33% 1

0.00% 0

TOTAL 12

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 212 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 212 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

57 / 120

Q45 How would you classify the superintendent’s overall implementation of
Academic Engagement and Strategies for Student Success?

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

58.33%
7

33.33%
4

8.33%
1

0.00%
0

 
12

 
3.50

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly Effec… Effective (3) Partially Eff… Ineffective (1)

(no label)

 HIGHLY EFFECTIVE
(4)

EFFECTIVE
(3)

PARTIALLY EFFECTIVE
(2)

INEFFECTIVE
(1)

TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

(no
label)

March 4, 2024 
Page 213 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 213 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

58 / 120

Q46 Please share any other comments you have below:
Answered: 4 Skipped: 8

# RESPONSES DATE

1 I appreciate the theme of “continually revisited” as key to success in this area. 2/13/2024 10:24 PM

2 As it pertains to the area of performance academic engagement and strategies for student
success, please see my comments for curriculum and instruction evaluation, as my areas of
concern are the same for both categories.

2/12/2024 11:26 AM

3 Could we learn more about the "Courageous Leadership Institute?" Celebrating success is one
of my favorite areas to hear about at a Board meeting. It was great to hear how Viking is
focusing on absenteeism at their school and making a difference.

2/11/2024 9:52 PM

4 With High Reliability Schools student scores are improving! 2/8/2024 2:31 PM

March 4, 2024 
Page 214 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 214 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

59 / 120

Q47 Goal 1 - Effective Teaching in Every Classroom.Effective teaching in
every classroom will be defined by a common language for instructional
practices and strategies. Effective teaching in every school is defined by

the myriad conditions a teacher creates for learning.Dr. Brenner's Narrative
of Evidence:Strategies:1.     Administrators, teachers, and staff members

will be provided with professional learning opportunities and necessary
supports to achieve professional growth goals.October 2023:

Administrators, teachers, and staff are provided with opportunities for
growth from Colleagues, Instructional Coaches as well as building leaders. 

This will be an ongoing practice.2.     Administrators, teachers, and staff
members will be provided with opportunities to observe and reflect upon
effective teaching practices.October 2023: Administrators, teachers, and
staff have the opportunity to participate in instructional rounds to observe

and reflect upon effective teaching practices.  This will be an ongoing
practice.3.     Administrators, teachers, and staff members will be provided
learning opportunities to utilize the identified technology to ensure effective

teaching in every classroom.October 2023:Teachers are provided on-
demand and districtwide professional learning opportunities from

Instructional Design Coaches on the effective use of required technological
resources.  The district also utilizes Clever, a single, sign-on platform, to

provide ease of access for staff and students to digital resources.  This will
be an ongoing practice. 4.     The school district will identify and monitor
the necessary technology at each grade level or content area to ensure
access to and effective use of technology for instructional practices in

every classroom.February 2024:The district supports a 1:1 implementation
of student devices, devices for all instructional staff, and support for all
users.  Teachers are provided on-demand and districtwide professional

learning opportunities from Instructional Design Coaches on the effective
use of required technological resources.  This will be an ongoing

practice.5.     The school district will provide the financial resources to
acquire, support, and maintain the identified technology to ensure effective

teaching in every classroom. (Long-Term Technology and Financial
Planning Documents).February 2024:Ongoing.  A long-range technology
plan continues to be reviewed annually to include the replacement cycles

for technology resources of the district including student and staff devices,
interactive boards/projectors, network infrastructure, security cameras,

March 4, 2024 
Page 215 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 215 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

60 / 120

58.33% 7

41.67% 5

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

printers/copiers, and auxiliary equipment.  New additions within the
planning document will also need to include the new District s

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 216 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 216 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

61 / 120

Q48 How would you classify the superintendent’s overall implementation of
Professional Learning and Technology?

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

66.67%
8

33.33%
4

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
12

 
3.67

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly Effec… Effective (3) Partially Eff… Ineffective (1)

(no label)

 HIGHLY EFFECTIVE
(4)

EFFECTIVE
(3)

PARTIALLY EFFECTIVE
(2)

INEFFECTIVE
(1)

TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

(no
label)

March 4, 2024 
Page 217 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 217 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

62 / 120

Q49 Please share any other comments you have below:
Answered: 3 Skipped: 9

# RESPONSES DATE

1 No concerns. 2/12/2024 11:27 AM

2 Reviewing the long-range technology plan, providing instructional design coaches, and
providing professional development opportunities on Wednesday afternoons is a great way to
invest in learning.

2/11/2024 9:55 PM

3 Providing all students with updated devices. 2/8/2024 11:25 AM

March 4, 2024 
Page 218 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 218 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

63 / 120

Q50 Goal 1 - Empower persons at all levels of Grand Forks Public Schools
(students, support staff, teachers, administration) to explore and develop

ideas, passions, and leadership skills as they align with the District's
mission, vision, and goals.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:February
2024:The only additional report since four months ago comes from the

high school curriculum review process. The committee approved a cadre
of workforce development and readiness courses designed to give

students high school credit for on-site workplace apprenticeship
experiences in a variety of fields ranging from business to technology. In

addition, a “successful school and life skills” half-credit course was
approved for students attending alternative educational settings, which
allows students to participate in a series of choice-based seminars and
field experiences that culminate in high school credit. October 2023:The

Innovations Committee has sunsetted, yet student engagement couched in
high quality, relevant, rigorous tier one instruction remains the focal point of
collaborative work within the High Reliability Schools Framework, culturally

responsive teaching, and building instructional frameworks. Ongoing
commitment to refining alternative pathways toward graduation continues
at the secondary level. In the past year and a half, high schools and Valley

Middle School have incorporated “school within a school” programs
designed to support students with lagging skills at the main campus;
redesigned an off-campus program called the SAIL (Social Academic
Intervention Learning) Center to better engage students both from a
curriculum and pro-social standpoint; created a new Credit Recovery

Option (“CRO”) for students who completed significant coursework but did
not pass a class -- CRO allows them to pick up where they left off and

acquire a passing grade without retaking the entire semester; Invested in
new online courseware that is more engaging in both delivery and

assessment; and is exploring school to work program expansion not only
through the pending career impact academy but also on campus targeting

our most at-risk youth. Schroeder Middle School is piloting a problem-
based learning program in partnership with UND designed to dually provide

aspiring teachers with more student contact time earlier in their
programming. This is in partnership with UND. Finally, the Career Impact
Academy (CIA) has broken ground on its way to opening in two years and

offering students hands-on, industry-based learning opportunities. The

March 4, 2024 
Page 219 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 219 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

64 / 120

50.00% 6

50.00% 6

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Mentor Center, an innovative after-school educational and social-emotional
support program, might be in its final year pending additional grant funding
(has been funded by ESSER). The Mentor Center has provided academic,
mental health, and social-emotional supports for students in a unique and

tailored manner since opening during the pandemic. It also provides
ongoing enrichment opportunities for students ranging from art to cultural

exploration to nature-oriented activities. Student survey feedback has
proven this program as highly effective and engaging, allowing students to

stay on track academically yet also experience broader personal
connections while uncovering new passions and experiences.

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 220 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 220 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

65 / 120

Q51 Goal 2 - Invest in building teacher capacity around innovative
practices in a student-centered classroom, acknowledging that an effective

teacher is the most important factor affecting student achievement and
personal development.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:February

2024:During the January 15, 2024, professional development day,  the
district brought a Solution Tree consultant in to speak on the ties between

professional learning communities (PLCs), high-quality tier one and tier two
instruction, and how those elements progress the entire “Response to

Intervention” framework. Specific buildings will follow up during the
February professional development session by making ties to their

instructional models, student engagement and achievement data, and the
like.October 2023:This work has primarily fallen under the “Choice Ready”
framework at the high school level as administrators work with teams to

ensure students build relevant transferable skills that prepare students for
their next step beyond high school be it straight into the workforce, college,

or the military. High school capstone projects are in the process of being
defined, and schools continue basing coursework on student interest
annually. Project-based learning piloted along with UND’s support this

school year may branch out to other middle schools once assessed. All
campuses continue to work with instructional coaches to integrate high-
quality, tier one instruction that engages students in higher-order thinking

and hands-on learning experiences.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

March 4, 2024 
Page 221 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 221 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

66 / 120

58.33% 7

41.67% 5

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 222 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 222 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

67 / 120

Q52 Goal 3 - Ensure equitable access to rigorous, meaningful learning
experiences for all students, regardless of the schools they attend, their
triumphs or challenges, or perceived abilities.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of

Evidence:February 2024:Student engagement levels continue to lag, and
buildings continue to discuss mechanisms for increasing engagement,

primarily at the secondary level. This is a work in progress and ties directly
to the previous goal area that discussed “multiple pathways” to

graduation. Individual buildings are collecting classroom data through
learning walks, informal observations, and instructional rounds to assess
predominant practices as they align with building goals and instructional

models. This is part of the HRS level two accreditation process.
Additionally, district personnel have begun a series of “learning walks,”

scheduled for each campus, in order to provide administrators and
teachers with additional feedback and data. October 2023:Survey data

continues to be collected and analyzed annually produced by the required
state engagement survey and Panorama data. In addition, RRHS is
utilizing the “Wellington Engagement Survey” to help staff recognize

student perceptions of task relevance and meaning. Administrators and
teachers provide feedback to teachers observed on instructional rounds

and audit walks, and our observation model and Cognia accreditation
preparation focus on how the learner responds to instructional strategies,

all focused on engagement indicators.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

March 4, 2024 
Page 223 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 223 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

68 / 120

50.00% 6

50.00% 6

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 224 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 224 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

69 / 120

58.33% 7

41.67% 5

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q53 Goal 4 - Challenge the conventional constructs of age, time,
schedules, and other facets of the traditional school day to ensure

purposeful learning.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:October 2023:-
The Career Impact Academy broke ground in October 2023 in preparation
for opening in 2025. - Alternative pathways discussions remain ongoing,

including the continued development of programs such as SWIS and SAIL
designed to teach students social, behavioral, or academic gap skills that

will afford them greater success on campus.- State legislation has
expanded online course access through NDCDE, providing students

another viable alternative they can engage in asynchronously, paid for
through district funding.

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 225 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 225 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

70 / 120

Q54 How would you classify the superintendent’s overall implementation of
Innovation and Creativity?

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

58.33%
7

41.67%
5

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
12

 
3.58

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly Effec… Effective (3) Partially Eff… Ineffective (1)

(no label)

 HIGHLY EFFECTIVE
(4)

EFFECTIVE
(3)

PARTIALLY EFFECTIVE
(2)

INEFFECTIVE
(1)

TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

(no
label)

March 4, 2024 
Page 226 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 226 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

71 / 120

Q55 Please share any other comments you have below:
Answered: 5 Skipped: 7

# RESPONSES DATE

1 The district needs to ensure that programs are available to all for equity and inclusion.
Transportation needs to be available.

2/15/2024 2:26 PM

2 I commend the idea for “learning walks” as it will ensure direct communication and visuals of
the status of each school.

2/12/2024 11:29 AM

3 I would like to hear how RTI discussions are progressing and how buildings are responding and
implementing plans. Great job implementing independent building conversations.

2/11/2024 10:08 PM

4 Dr. Brenner is focusing on engagement levels which is appreciated! 2/8/2024 2:45 PM

5 The Career Impact Academy will be a great addition to our district. 2/8/2024 11:28 AM

March 4, 2024 
Page 227 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 227 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

72 / 120

Q56 Goal 1 - Increase mental health literacy for all students, families, and
staff.  Mental health literacy is defined as understanding how to foster and

maintain good mental health, understanding mental disorders, and their
treatments, decreasing stigma, and understanding how to seek help

effectively.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:October 2023:- Summer
work funded by the Behavioral health grant allowed for K-12 Sources leads
to meet and complete strategic planning for the 23-24 school year.  In K-5

that meant a subset of school counselors met to continue Sources
curriculum development and implementation K-5.  For 6-12 Sources leads
created implementation plans for the upcoming school year.  - Sources of

Strength 6-12 Training continues across the district.  Community High
School has provided student and staff training this fall.  Other campuses

are determining and scheduling training needs.- Regular district Sources of
Strength meetings have been scheduled monthly for check-ins on

implementation and support. - A list of all district Sources leads has been
created. - Funding for all Sources leads has been requested through the

behavioral health grant to create sustainability in implementation.- Sources
training funding has been requested through the Behavioral health grant to
support new counselors in their implementation of the Sources curriculum.-

Two Sources teams (South and Community) participated in Altru’s
community TEARS walk.  - All staff will be trained in Sources of Strength
on January 15th as part of the Stronger Connections grant.  - Four mental
health team members have been trained in YMHFA.  A minimum of three
staff trainings will be offered this year to continue mental health education
across the district.  - Additional mental health literacy offerings through the

behavioral health grant this year will include Psychological First Aid and
Trauma Informed Skills for Educators (TISE).- Monthly newsletters go out

in the Need To Know to inform staff of mental health updates and
opportunities.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

March 4, 2024 
Page 228 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 228 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

73 / 120

58.33% 7

41.67% 5

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 229 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 229 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

74 / 120

Q57 Goal 2 - Implement best practices for mental health screening to
determine whether students may be at risk for a mental health concern.Dr.

Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:October 2023:The two screening
Panorama window continues (Fall and Spring).  Committee discussion was

held on the frequency and content of the Panorama screener.  The
measures for well-being and SEL remain the same.  Discussion continues
about the possibility of a three-window screening for Panorama.  Student
Support + Environment has been updated to serve as pre and post (fall
and spring) to assist schools with school climate information.  Sense of
Belonging was added to the school climate and safety measures.K-2

teachers assessed all students in the following areas during each survey
administration:1. Self-Management2. Social Awareness3. Self-Efficacy4.

Emotion Regulation5. EngagementStudents in grades 3-12 assessed
themselves in the following areas during each survey administration:1.

Self-Management2. Social Awareness3. Self-Efficacy4. Emotion
Regulation5. Supportive Relationships6. Challenging Feelings7. Positive

Feelings
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 230 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 230 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

75 / 120

58.33% 7

41.67% 5

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

TOTAL 12

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 231 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 231 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

76 / 120

50.00% 6

50.00% 6

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q58 Goal 3 - Provide mental health promotion services and supports for all
students.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:October 2023::The Shape
assessment was completed for the end of the 2022-2023 school year.  
The committee needs to meet again to assess if SHAPE will continue or

merge into MTSS processes that are being developed in the 23-24 school
year.

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 232 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 232 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

77 / 120

Q59 Goal 4 - Provide early intervention services and supports to address
the mental health concerns of students who are experiencing mild distress,

functional impairment, or are at risk for a given problem or concern.Dr.
Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:February 2024:Lewis and Clark

volunteered as a pilot for a midwinter screening. Their survey window is
currently underway. Content matches the fall survey and includes the

Sense of Belonging measure.A district committee will revisit the frequency
of the Panorama survey based on pilot feedback.October 2023:District-

wide training was held for CBITS, Bounce Back, and Anger Coping this fall
for School Psychologists, School Counselors. School Social Workers and

mental health therapists.  20 elementary mental health staff were trained in
Bounce Back, 21 middle and high school staff were trained in CBITs, and
28 mental health staff were trained in Anger Coping. A group facilitator will
be contracted through CVIC to support all group implementation through
the Stronger Connections grant.  Ongoing implementation support will be

offered for CBITS, Bounce Back, and Anger Coping through the
Behavioral Health grant.Panorama training for staff continues.  One
training has been completed so far this fall and training next week on

interpreting Panorama Well-being data.Dialectical Behavior Training (DBT)
training will be held in December through the Stronger Connections grant

for all mental health team members.Behavioral Grant funds will continue to
Support Connect and Support services through Together Counseling. 

Behavioral Health Grant funding will also pay for a pilot of a Clinical Psych
Practicum at one of our elementary schools to provide additional

therapeutic services in the schools.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

March 4, 2024 
Page 233 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 233 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

78 / 120

58.33% 7

41.67% 5

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 234 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 234 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

79 / 120

Q60 Goal 5 - Provide treatment services and supports to address mental
health concerns for students experiencing significant distress and

functional impairment.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:February 2024:·
Staff Sources training was completed on January 15th· Sources funding

was established for all Sources leads across the district through the
Behavioral Health Grant.· Red River and Valley have requested Sources
training in their buildings this spring.· K-5 Sources instruction continues

through lessons with the school counselors.· Group implementation
continues. In addition to district training in CBITS, Bounce Back and Anger

Coping, five additional mental health team members were training in
STRONG through our NCS3 partnership. We recently partnered with CVIC

to train 6 additional mental health team members in Anger Coping.· DBT
initial training for the mental health team is complete. One hour of follow-up

support remains and will be scheduled this spring.· Together Counseling
services are being utilized at the elementary and middle levels. · The pilot

with the clinical psych student has been successful. The PhD student
carries a caseload of 10-15 students and is beginning group co-

facilitation.·  The TLC is now open. We have begun our second cohort of
students. All other services listed previously continue.October 2023:-

Mental Health Quarterly Collaborations continue.  - The Therapy
prioritization rubric has been shared and discussed with the mental health
team.- The TLC is currently looking at a soft opening the week of October

23rd focusing on students ages 10-14. Two teachers are in place and
regular collaborative meetings are occurring between GFPS and Altru.  -
Mental Health Rounds continue for this school year and will take place

November-December 23.  - The Village Schools Based therapy services
have been secured for an additional three years through the Stronger

Connections grant.  - Access for All was the recipient of Giving Hearts Day
and received over $50,000 to support mental health needs K-12 through
NPCC.- An NPCC school-based therapist has been in place since last

spring for grades 6-12 for insurance-based mental health support in our
middle and high schools.

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

March 4, 2024 
Page 235 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 235 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

80 / 120

75.00% 9

25.00% 3

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 236 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 236 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

81 / 120

Q61 How would you classify the superintendent’s overall implementation of
Mental Health?
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

66.67%
8

33.33%
4

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
12

 
3.67

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly Effec… Effective (3) Partially Eff… Ineffective (1)

(no label)

 HIGHLY EFFECTIVE
(4)

EFFECTIVE
(3)

PARTIALLY EFFECTIVE
(2)

INEFFECTIVE
(1)

TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

(no
label)

March 4, 2024 
Page 237 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 237 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

82 / 120

Q62 Please share any other comments you have below:
Answered: 4 Skipped: 8

# RESPONSES DATE

1 Mental health issues needs to be a high priority. Services to youth in Grand forks are poor.
They are underserved as there are not enough opportunities for youth, especially for those who
are low income. Thank you for your focus in this area.

2/15/2024 2:42 PM

2 The focus on increasing mental health for students and staff is a great goal for the
Superintendent to have. I appreciate updates on all new options for engaging these subjects.

2/12/2024 11:31 AM

3 Thank you for providing multiple paths for mental health concerns and training. 2/11/2024 10:26 PM

4 Appreciate the focus on behavioral/mental health. 2/8/2024 2:50 PM

March 4, 2024 
Page 238 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 238 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

83 / 120

58.33% 7

41.67% 5

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q63 Goal 1 - Assess and improve school climate.Dr. Brenner's Narrative
of Evidence:February 2024:· Panorama school climate data was shared
with building leaders.· Pet Therapy continues. The volunteer teams have

grown to 13. We continue to advertise for additional volunteer
teams.October 2023:- School Climate was assessed in the spring of 23.
Staff climate data was also collected and shared across the district.- For

the 2023-24 year, Student Support + Environment will be offered in the fall
and spring to offer pre- and post-results for the year.  - Pet Therapy

continues.  A meet and greet was held and requests for teams are open
for the 23-24 school year.  The teams did shrink down to 8 core teams. 
Advertising and recruitment have taken place to regrow the volunteers

through the Grand Forks Kennel Club.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 239 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 239 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

84 / 120

58.33% 7

41.67% 5

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q64 Goal 2 - Assess and improve trauma-informed practices.Dr. Brenner's
Narrative of Evidence:February 2024:- Calm Classroom is currently

underway- TISE, Psychological First Aid, Students Exposed to Trauma,
and Youth Mental Health First Aid are all being offered to staff as prism
courses this spring.- CBITS, Bounce Back, and Anger Coping have all

been offered to our mental health team to support students' mental health
needs, particularly in the area of trauma.October 2023:- Calm Classroom

Level 1 will be held as a Prism Course this fall.- The TRS-IA was
completed in the spring of 23.- Two hours of Trauma-informed PD was

held for all staff in the spring of 23.  - TISE will be offered to 200 staff this
year.  - CBITS and Bounce Back are evidence-based trauma interventions
and all mental health staff were trained this fall based on their appropriate

level.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 240 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 240 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

85 / 120

Q65 Goal 3 – Strengthen expectations of students and staff and ensure
accountability of students and staff to address any harassing, offensive,

hateful or discriminatory speech directed at individuals or groups of
individuals based on race, religion, color, national origin, gender, sexual

orientation or disability.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:February
2024:Under the Superintendent’s direction, and facilitated by the

Superintendent, the district has engaged with Vital Network, and external
vendor who specializes in assisting school districts to improve teacher
retention and reduce teacher stress and burnout. The North Dakota
Department of Public Instruction is funding this two year relationship
between GFPS and Vital Network. A survey by Vital Network was

distributed to all “student facing” staff, that is, those who work directly with
students. The results of the survey will be building specific yet will yield

results applicable for district leadership reflection in determining next steps.
To that end, Superintendent has enlisted the support of a District Steering

Committee who will be front and center in determining how the survey
results will be used in future decision-making. As a result of the above,

Superintendent was part of a panel discussion with Vital Network leaders
at the North Dakota Association of School Administrators Conference
January 28-30, 2024.October 2023:Restorative Practices Circles were

provided to all middle school staff as part of back-to-school PD.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

March 4, 2024 
Page 241 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 241 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

86 / 120

50.00% 6

50.00% 6

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 242 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 242 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

87 / 120

Q66 How would you classify the superintendent’s overall implementation of
Positive School Climate and Culture?

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

58.33%
7

41.67%
5

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
12

 
3.58

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly Effec… Effective (3) Partially Eff… Ineffective (1)

(no label)

 HIGHLY EFFECTIVE
(4)

EFFECTIVE
(3)

PARTIALLY EFFECTIVE
(2)

INEFFECTIVE
(1)

TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

(no
label)

March 4, 2024 
Page 243 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 243 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

88 / 120

Q67 Please share any other comments you have below:
Answered: 5 Skipped: 7

# RESPONSES DATE

1 Given that we are seeing some teachers resign before the end of the year, and from what I
hear, teachers have a lot of stress. Anything the district can do to improve the climate and
culture is a step in the right direction. As a board member I would appreciate seeing the
panorama data so we are more aware of needs, strengths.

2/15/2024 4:38 PM

2 The continued investment of time and resources in climate along with addressing teacher burn
out and stress are highly important. Finding creative way to have resources to address these
is great.

2/13/2024 10:29 PM

3 No concerns, the Superintendent is moving the climate forward in a more positive manner at
this time.

2/12/2024 11:32 AM

4 Working on positive school climate and culture is a continuing process. Being a teacher in
today's climate is full of challenges and I appreciate any efforts made to support staff and
students.

2/11/2024 10:34 PM

5 The focus on teacher retention and reducing teacher stress and burnout is a great thing to
focus on!

2/8/2024 2:52 PM

March 4, 2024 
Page 244 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 244 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

89 / 120

Q68 Goal 1 - Increase social and emotional learning skills for all students
and staff.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:February 2024:CASEL

participation is ongoing. The SEL committee identified the standards they
would like to move forward with. These are the 2018 ND SEL/MTSS

standards. The committee will have subcomittees to continue the
standards alignment with Second Step K-8.October 2023:An SEL essential
standards committee will be established in the 23-24 school year to set K-
12 essential standards for SEL.  Essential standards will be shared with

the district so buildings can build SEL lessons aligned to the essentials in
the 24-25 school year.Second Step was adopted at the K-5 level for

Bullying prevention curriculum and full SEL curriculum access. This mirrors
the middle schools.The mental health coordinator was selected as a

CASEL Fellow as part of their national SEL fellows’ program.  Information
from this training will be discussed as part of the GFPS plans for SEL

implementation planning.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 245 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 245 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

90 / 120

58.33% 7

41.67% 5

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

TOTAL 12

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 246 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 246 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

91 / 120

66.67% 8

33.33% 4

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q69 Goal 2 - Identify student strengths and developmental assets (e.g.,
school connectedness, social skills, self-determination, decision-making,

etc.) and commit to improving SEL-related systems and practices
continuously.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:February 2024:- All
certified staff participated in an MTSS B training on January 15th.-

Panorama Fall survey data was shared with building
administrators.October 2023:A review of SEL and MTSS B is planned to
assess if the newly formed MTSS B committees can fulfill SEL needs to

include data analysis, prevention, and intervention in the areas of the
Panorama well-being survey.  District-wide training in MTSS B has been

requested through the Behavioral Health Grant for the January 15 PD day.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 247 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 247 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

92 / 120

Q70 How would you classify the superintendent’s overall implementation of
Social-Emotional Learning?

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

66.67%
8

33.33%
4

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
12

 
3.67

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly Effec… Effective (3) Partially Eff… Ineffective (1)

(no label)

 HIGHLY EFFECTIVE
(4)

EFFECTIVE
(3)

PARTIALLY EFFECTIVE
(2)

INEFFECTIVE
(1)

TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

(no
label)

March 4, 2024 
Page 248 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 248 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

93 / 120

Q71 Please share any other comments you have below:
Answered: 1 Skipped: 11

# RESPONSES DATE

1 No concerns. 2/12/2024 11:32 AM

March 4, 2024 
Page 249 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 249 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

94 / 120

Q72 Goal 1 - Support a full continuum of care within a multi-tiered system
of support by school and community partners working together and

maximizing their knowledge and resources.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of
Evidence:February 2024:· Continued participation on MHM Advisory

Board· TEARS and Altru have separated. The mental health coordinator is
engaging with both entities.· Serving on the ND Family Based Services
Board· Serving on the Mid America School Mental Health Conference

Board· Presented with a collaborative team at the National Conference for
Advancing School Mental Health· Serving on the ethics committee for GF
Public HealthOctober 2023:- Continued participation on the Mental Health
Matters Advisory Board.  - Participation in the TEARS governance board
and community activities.  - Nominated to the North Dakota Family Based
Services Governance Board.  Serving on the Grand Forks Public Health

Committee. - A collaborative team from GFPS and CVIC is presenting on
comprehensive school-based mental health services at the National
Advancing School Mental Health Conference.  - The Mental Health

Coordinator will also be speaking to the new Safe and Supportive School
cohort on continued comprehensive mental health services.  - The Mental
Health Coordinator is also an advisory board member for the Mid-America
Mental Health Conference.  - Continued participation in the GF Community

Partners Meetings.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

March 4, 2024 
Page 250 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 250 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

95 / 120

66.67% 8

33.33% 4

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 251 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 251 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

96 / 120

50.00% 6

50.00% 6

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q73 Goal 2 - Involve students and families in all aspects of prevention,
intervention, and health promotion design, implementation, and

evaluation.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:October 2023:School
Counseling Advisory Councils remain in place.

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 252 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 252 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

97 / 120

33.33% 4

66.67% 8

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q74 Goal 3 - Ensure that all staff, students, families, and community
members have a sense of belonging at our schools and that we provide
opportunities inside and outside of the classroom where everyone can

learn about each other’s diverse backgrounds.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of
Evidence:February 2024:Sense of Belonging was added as a measure in

the Panorama SurveyOctober 2023:No current updates.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 253 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 253 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

98 / 120

66.67% 8

33.33% 4

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q75 Goal 4 - Build upon our existing school partnerships with diverse
community organizations.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:October

2023:The Stronger Connections grant for $793,045 was secured by GFPS
for comprehensive mental health services at Tiers 1, 2, and 3.  The

Behavioral Health Grant continues as a funding source for mental health
resources.  The mental health coordinator has formed a committee to
pursue 1915i Medicaid billing for mental health to pursue a sustainable
funding stream for mental health services.Christine Litzinger, Catherin

Gillach, and Brandon Baumbach met to discuss an additional opportunity
to extend mental health services throughout the district via the Stronger

Communities Grant. Furthermore, the Mental Health Coordinator position
is now in the general fund, prioritizing the work in future budgets beyond

grant dollars.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 254 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 254 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

99 / 120

Q76 Goal 5 - Use multiple and diverse funding sources (District, local,
state, and federal) and types of funding (grants, private foundation funding,
etc.) to support a sustainable, comprehensive school district mental health
system.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:February 2024:Pursuit of 1915i

Medicaid billing continues. Application is submitted and awaiting review.
October 2023:- Mental Health Quarterly Collaborations continue. - A

Behavioral Health Grant has been secured for $175,547.59. The grant
runs from Oct 2023 through June 30, 2024- The Therapy prioritization

rubric has been shared and discussed with the mental health team.- The
TLC is currently looking at a soft opening the week of October 23rd

focusing on students ages 10-14. Two teachers are in place and regular
collaborative meetings are occurring between GFPS and Altru.  - Mental

Health Rounds continue for this school year and will take place November-
December 23.  - The Village Schools Based therapy services have been
secured for an additional three years through the Stronger Connections

grant.  - Access for All was the recipient of Giving Hearts Day and received
over $50,000 to support mental health needs K-12 through NPCC.- An
NPCC school-based therapist has been in place since last spring for

grades 6-12 for insurance-based mental health support in our middle and
high schools.

Answered: 11 Skipped: 1

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 255 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 255 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

100 / 120

63.64% 7

36.36% 4

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

TOTAL 11

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 256 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 256 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

101 / 120

Q77 How would you classify the superintendent’s overall implementation of
Community Engagement?

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

66.67%
8

33.33%
4

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
12

 
3.67

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly Effec… Effective (3) Partially Eff… Ineffective (1)

(no label)

 HIGHLY EFFECTIVE
(4)

EFFECTIVE
(3)

PARTIALLY EFFECTIVE
(2)

INEFFECTIVE
(1)

TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

(no
label)

March 4, 2024 
Page 257 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 257 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

102 / 120

Q78 Please share any other comments you have below:
Answered: 3 Skipped: 9

# RESPONSES DATE

1 I think from what we see at board meetings through celebrating success, school leaders are
emphasizing school engagement. This is a good thing. Helping ALL kids to have a trusted
person in the school is a good thing.

2/15/2024 4:41 PM

2 No concerns. 2/12/2024 11:33 AM

3 Stronger Connections grant for $793,045 was secured by GFPS for comprehensive mental
health services at Tiers 1, 2, and 3. A Behavioral Health Grant has been secured for
$175,547.59. Received over $50,000 to support mental health needs K-12 through NPCC.
Awesome!

2/8/2024 2:55 PM

March 4, 2024 
Page 258 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 258 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

103 / 120

Q79 Goal 1 - Grand Forks Public Schools will engage in a process to
ensure long-term planning for school district facilities and associated

operational and maintenance costs.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of
Evidence:February 2024:Buildings and Grounds Director Jonathan Ellwein
provided a year Facilities Master Plan (inclusive of Maintenance planning)

to the school board on January 22, 2024.  A link to that information is
found HERE.October 2023:On May 16, 2023, voters passed a $79MM
referendum including $55MM for construction of a new Valley Middle

School, $6MM for a new Central Kitchen, and $18MM for district-wide
Safety and Security upgrades. ICON Architects will provide A&E services
for Valley Middle School, and EAPC will provide A&E services for Safety
and Security. Construction Engineers will oversee construction across all

scopes of the referendum.  Currently, Valley MS and Central Kitchen are in
the design phase, with expected start dates in Spring 2024.  Safety and

Security is in the assessment phase with expected start dates in
Spring/Summer 2024.The Career Impact Academy project was approved

and broke ground on October 2, 2023 thanks to efforts by GFPS, The City
of Grand Forks, Grand Forks County, and industry partners. The project is
due to be completed in the summer of 2025 and will provide much-needed
technical education programming for the community.Summer 2023:- Ben
Franklin Elementary, Viking Elementary, and Lake Agassiz Elementary

received HVAC upgrades related to ESSER funds and mill bonding
executed in 2021.- Wilder Elementary was also provided portable AC units

as part of the effort to air condition all schools by 2025.- Ben Franklin
Elementary received new flooring in the East wing, in classroom

bathrooms, and upgraded casework in the hallways.The Guaranteed
Energy Savings project is nearing completion and includes district-wide

lighting upgrades to LED and motion sensor lightingThe district is exploring
options to recommission the pool at Central High School. A plan is to be in

place by late 2023.Upcoming Projects:The district will address HVAC
concerns in Lewis and Clark Elementary and J. Nelson Kelly Elementary

summer of 2024, with the hope to have both schools air-conditioned by the
beginning of the 2024-2025 school year.

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

March 4, 2024 
Page 259 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 259 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

104 / 120

75.00% 9

25.00% 3

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 260 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 260 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

105 / 120

Q80 How would you classify the superintendent’s overall implementation of
Master Facilities Planning?

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

75.00%
9

25.00%
3

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
12

 
3.75

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly Effec… Effective (3) Partially Eff… Ineffective (1)

(no label)

 HIGHLY EFFECTIVE
(4)

EFFECTIVE
(3)

PARTIALLY EFFECTIVE
(2)

INEFFECTIVE
(1)

TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

(no
label)

March 4, 2024 
Page 261 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 261 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

106 / 120

Q81 Please share any other comments you have below:
Answered: 6 Skipped: 6

# RESPONSES DATE

1 Dr. Brenner’s persistence in this area has continued to be a positive. The presentation of this
plan was impressive and is step one. Continued focus and persistence to follow and complete
the plan will be key in my opinion.

2/13/2024 10:29 PM

2 Br. Brenner has done an excellent job at managing the district's resources and long-term
planning.

2/13/2024 5:55 PM

3 No concerns. 2/12/2024 11:33 AM

4 Great planning for the future of the District. 2/11/2024 10:46 PM

5 Long-term planning is shaping up and we have plans for well into the future. 2/8/2024 2:57 PM

6 B & G Director, Jonathan Ellwein provided the Board with the district 5 year plan to maintain
our schools moving forward, this will be a great help when we start the budget process.

2/8/2024 11:35 AM

March 4, 2024 
Page 262 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 262 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

107 / 120

Q82 Goal 1 - Grand Forks Public Schools will create a long-term plan for
technology to maximize digital learning opportunities.Dr. Brenner's

Narrative of Evidence:February 2024:Ongoing.  A long-range technology
plan continues to be reviewed annually to include the replacement cycles

for technology resources of the district including student and staff devices,
interactive boards/projectors, network infrastructure, security cameras,

printers/copiers, and auxiliary equipment.  New additions within the
planning document will also need to include the new District school

buildings (Valley Middle School, Career Impact Academy, and potentially,
Twining Middle School).October 2023:In progress.  A long-range

technology plan continues to be finalized to include the replacement cycles
for technology resources of the district including student and staff devices,

interactive boards/projectors, network infrastructure, security cameras,
printers/copiers, and auxiliary equipment.  New additions within the

planning document include the new District school buildings (Valley Middle
School, Career Impact Academy, and Twining Middle School).The district

supports a 1:1 implementation of student devices, devices for all
instructional staff, and support for all users.  Teachers are provided on-

demand and districtwide professional learning opportunities from
Instructional Design Coaches on the effective use of required technological

resources.  This will be an ongoing practice.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

March 4, 2024 
Page 263 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 263 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

108 / 120

75.00% 9

25.00% 3

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

TOTAL 12

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 264 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 264 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

109 / 120

Q83 How would you classify the superintendent’s overall implementation of
Long-Term Technology Planning?

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

75.00%
9

25.00%
3

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
12

 
3.75

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly Effec… Effective (3) Partially Eff… Ineffective (1)

(no label)

 HIGHLY EFFECTIVE
(4)

EFFECTIVE
(3)

PARTIALLY EFFECTIVE
(2)

INEFFECTIVE
(1)

TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

(no
label)

March 4, 2024 
Page 265 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 265 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

110 / 120

Q84 Please share any other comments you have below:
Answered: 4 Skipped: 8

# RESPONSES DATE

1 Safety and security is top of mind. 2/15/2024 4:42 PM

2 I am excited to see the work of the new IT Manager begin as he looks to make improvements
and review areas of need. I would like to see a Technology presentation to the board in the
future.

2/13/2024 10:30 PM

3 No concerns. 2/12/2024 11:33 AM

4 Thank you for hiring a technology manager. This role will prove to be critical in the long-range
plans for the school district.

2/11/2024 10:48 PM

March 4, 2024 
Page 266 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 266 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

111 / 120

Q85 Goal 1 - Grand Forks Public Schools will develop a sustainable, long-
term financial plan.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:February 2024:A

great deal of effort is being put in to meet the goal of having a general fund
balance equal to 15% of total expenditures. This goal also is facing the

headwind of ESSER dollars being sunset at the end of FY24. With more
investment into people, there has been a lot of deliberate conversation
about the budget characteristics moving forward. To this end, the FY25

budget work began just as soon as the FY24 budget was passed in
October 2023. The process is inclusive of administration across the district
and, for this reason, is well-informed. Another component of the strategy
involves the building fund. With an increase in the building fund mill levy,
we have been able to rid the general ledger of construction projects and
even leases. This shift has allowed the general ledger to stay focused on

operations and not capital expenditures.October 2023:The board
negotiated a large increase in compensation packages for all employees.

The work since that time has been on the FY24 budget to realign
resources to pay for these increases. This work is ongoing and will

continue into the FY25 budget. The aim is still to reach a general fund
balance equal to 15% of expenditures by 2026.

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 267 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 267 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

112 / 120

58.33% 7

41.67% 5

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

TOTAL 12

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 268 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 268 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

113 / 120

Q86 How would you classify the superintendent’s overall implementation of
Long-Term Financial Planning?

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

58.33%
7

41.67%
5

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
12

 
3.58

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly Effec… Effective (3) Partially Eff… Ineffective (1)

(no label)

 HIGHLY EFFECTIVE
(4)

EFFECTIVE
(3)

PARTIALLY EFFECTIVE
(2)

INEFFECTIVE
(1)

TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

(no
label)

March 4, 2024 
Page 269 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 269 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

114 / 120

Q87 Please share any other comments you have below:
Answered: 8 Skipped: 4

# RESPONSES DATE

1 Based on my knowledge seeking input from stakeholders is essential to success. 2/15/2024 4:43 PM

2 Thank you for your efforts in this area to create a path to achieve goals set forth in the board
guiding change document while continuing to balance all needs of the district, students and
staff.

2/13/2024 10:30 PM

3 Br. Brenner has done a wonderful job at managing the district's resources and long-term
financial planning.

2/13/2024 5:56 PM

4 I appreciate all of the work Dr. Brenner has done and continues to do in order to build
consensus at the building level and meet our long-term budgetary goals.

2/13/2024 3:03 PM

5 No concerns. 2/12/2024 11:34 AM

6 Long-term financial planning is in the best interest of everyone in the District. Thank you for
making sure that the general fund balance is moving towards a balance equal to 15%.

2/11/2024 10:50 PM

7 The finances are looking good. We are getting back to where we should be. 2/8/2024 3:00 PM

8 With the addition of the 10 mil building fund will help our goal of reaching the 15% by 2026. 2/8/2024 11:37 AM

March 4, 2024 
Page 270 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 270 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

115 / 120

Q88 Goal 1 - Workplace Culture – Grand Forks Public Schools will create
a culture and work environment that makes the District an employer of

choice. Several motivating factors attract applicants and retain employees.
It is vital to create a culture that recognizes human motivators and allows

for flexibility in meeting a wide range of needs facing our existing or
potential workforce.Dr. Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:February 2024:The
state contracted with Vital Network to work with school districts to analyze
and address teacher burnout. We have had some initial meetings with Vital
Network to discuss how they can support us. A survey that Vital Network

created was distributed by the principals to their schools at the end of
January. We will meet in February to analyze the results and develop

action plans.We are in the process of re-launching the wellness committee
to help promote and engage our staff in various wellness initiatives with the
goal of increasing wellness and also reducing associated healthcare costs
for both the employee and employer. We conducted an initial meeting with
Blue Cross Blue Shield to learn about their wellness programs as well as

receive guidance on how to effectively launch a wellness committee. A 3rd
party wellness survey will be sent out to staff in February to gain feedback
on what wellness initiatives are most important to our staff. This data will

help guide the wellness committee’s recommendations for
programming.October 2023:The market review with Public Sector

Personnel Consultants was completed in February 2023. The data showed
the district’s compensation for classified staff was more than 5% lower

than the market for 89% of the classified positions. The data also showed
that the entry wage for teachers, principals, and directors was significantly

lower than the market. This data was used to drive decisions during the
spring negotiation cycle. The result was an average of around 12%
aggregate compensation increase for all staff over the next 2 years.

Teachers also now receive their hourly rate for most of the extra work they
do rather than the preset $25-30/hr. A major benefit that was added during

negotiations was 6 weeks of paid parental leave for teachers, directors,
and principals. To improve the onboarding experience an additional day of

new teacher workshops was added. Leaders were also encouraged to
bring their classified staff in 1-2 days before school started to complete

training and development activities. We launched PowerSchool Records to
create a more efficient onboarding process by moving the new hire

March 4, 2024 
Page 271 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 271 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

116 / 120

63.64% 7

36.36% 4

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

paperwork online. We tested this out with the new teachers that started
this summer and it worked extremely well. We will roll out to classified new

hires this fall. We also utilized PowerSchool Records to launch training
modules electronically. This streamlined the process by having all the

training information in one spot and allowed us to easily track and monitor
the completion of the modules.

Answered: 11 Skipped: 1

TOTAL 11

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 272 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 272 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

117 / 120

Q89 Goal 2 – Recruitment, Outreach, and Promotions – Grand Forks
Public Schools will promote the District as a major employer in the state

and region and will continually review recruitment efforts and expand
efforts when necessary to attract the best candidates at all levels.  Also,
the District will seek to recruit a diverse applicant pool for all openings.Dr.

Brenner's Narrative of Evidence:February 2024:The state received funding
to start a Registered Teacher Apprenticeship program. We worked with

both Mayville State University and the University of North Dakota to submit
proposals for us to receive funding for this program. Mayville was awarded
enough funding for 4 spots in this program for Grand Forks Public Schools.

We are in the process of selecting the 4 individuals (Paras or Classroom
Specialists) who will start the Special Education program at MSU this

summer. UND was not awarded any funding this round.We have working
with our marketing team to get photos of our staff for our recruitment

advertisements so we can replace the stock images that Forum is
currently using. The new advertisements with our employees have been

positive and have received increased engagement on our sites compared
to the previous advertisements.  We have also been working with our

marketing team to improve our HR landing page to improve the experience
for our current hires, new hires, and any prospective candidates. The new
landing page provides significantly more information than the past website

and is more efficiently organized making it easier for individuals to
navigate. We are trialing out some targeted geofencing with specific
positions in an effort to attract more candidates to some of our niche

positions. We have expanded our general advertisements by signing an
agreement with “Off-the-Wall” advertising to promote our custodian, cook,

and para openings at restaurants and bars throughout the community.
October 2023:In January 2023 we signed a marketing agreement with
Forum Communications. This agreement pushes our job postings to

dozens of job boards as well as strategically marketing Grand Forks Public
Schools career opportunities through various media outlets including

streaming services and YouTube. This marketing has been successful as
we have seen a significant increase in applications for all positions

compared to the same time last year. We also started an advertisement
agreement with Off the Wall Advertising to market our openings in 14

different restaurants/businesses across Grand Forks.In February 2023 we

March 4, 2024 
Page 273 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 273 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

118 / 120

45.45% 5

54.55% 6

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

hired an HR Generalist who is focused on recruitment. She has worked
diligently to increase the exposure of our opening to various job boards,

colleges, and associations. She has also increased our attendance at the
local and regional job fairs and college career fairs. She has grown our

partnership with Job Service of Grand Forks to promote our job openings
to those individuals who work with Job Service through their various

programs.We continue to supplement our teacher openings by recruiting
international teachers. This year we have hired 25 international teachers
from Canada, the Philippines, Nigeria, and India. Of the new international
teachers hired this year, 17 were hired for Special Education which helped

us fill all our Special Education teacher openings.
Answered: 11 Skipped: 1

TOTAL 11

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly
Effective

Effective

Partially
Effective

Ineffective

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Highly Effective

Effective

Partially Effective

Ineffective

March 4, 2024 
Page 274 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 274 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

119 / 120

Q90 How would you classify the superintendent’s overall implementation of
Human Resources?

Answered: 12 Skipped: 0

50.00%
6

50.00%
6

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
12

 
3.50

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Highly Effec… Effective (3) Partially Eff… Ineffective (1)

(no label)

 HIGHLY EFFECTIVE
(4)

EFFECTIVE
(3)

PARTIALLY EFFECTIVE
(2)

INEFFECTIVE
(1)

TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

(no
label)

March 4, 2024 
Page 275 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 275 of 291



Superintendent Evaluation - March 15, 2024

120 / 120

Q91 Please share any other comments you have below:
Answered: 4 Skipped: 8

# RESPONSES DATE

1 Please continue to improve the hiring/application process. Additionally, think about ways to
support people when onboarding who are from diverse backgrounds.

2/15/2024 4:56 PM

2 The number of resignations and retirements is concerning, however Dr. Brenner has taken
steps to increase recruitment. The only concern is retaining faculty, and identifying what is the
biggest factor for lack of retention.

2/12/2024 11:36 AM

3 Great plans for workplace culture. I have seen the ads placed with "Off-the-Wall" advertising,
and the more we can advertise our District open positions, the better.

2/11/2024 10:57 PM

4 Dr. Brenner is focused on treating teachers and all staff well. 2/8/2024 3:03 PM

March 4, 2024 
Page 276 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 276 of 291



 

1 
 

GRAND FORKS PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT #1 
SUPERINTENDENT CONTRACT 
 20234-20247 
 
AGREEMENT made and entered into this 64h day of March 20234, by and between the School Board 
of Grand Forks Public School District #1 (hereinafter School Board) and Dr. Terry Brenner. 
 
TERM:  Three (3) years starting July 1, 20234, and ending June 30, 2026.7 
 
JOB DESCRIPTION:  To faithfully perform the services prescribed by the School Board or its 
designated representative(s) during the life of this contract. The above name Administrator shall also be 
required to meet or exceed, during the life of this contract, the following requirement:  
SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS job description as outlined in School Board Regulation CAAA-BR. 
 
SALARY:  $203,913 per year for the fiscal year July 1, 2023, through June 30, 2024, and thereafter 
subject to negotiation. Salary shall be payable in 12 equal installments on the 15th of each month 
beginning July 15, 20234. 
 
WORK YEAR:  52 Weeks (260 days) 
 
RETIREMENT:  The District will contribute 12.75% of individual’s salary to North Dakota Teacher’s 
Fund for Retirement (TFFR). Also, an additional 11.75% of the individual’s salary will be contributed 
through salary deduction to TFFR. 
 
BENEFITS: 
 
Health Insurance:  The District will provide the same contribution level and policy as provided to the 
teaching staff (78% of annual premiums).   
  
Life Insurance:  The District will purchase $50,000 of term life insurance. The employee may 
purchase, at his own expense, an additional $50,000.   
 
Long Term Disability Insurance:  The District provides long-term disability coverage that provides a 
benefit of 66 2/3 of the employee’s salary if disabled for more than 90 days. From and after the 
expiration of nine (9) months from the date on which the  income protection plan begins to provide 
compensation to an individual or upon the expiration of the current contract year, whichever is later, all 
other fringe benefits provided by the District shall terminate. 
 
Sick Leave:  65 days. Sick leave accumulation not to exceed 65 days will be restored annually at the 
start of each fiscal year. 
 
Vacation:  Twenty-five (25) days per year. Up to five (5) days unused vacation may be carried over into 
the next fiscal year. Accrued unused vacation will be paid upon termination. 
 
Paid Holidays:  The following days are paid days off: July 4, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving 
Day and the Friday after, December 24, Christmas Day, January 1, January 2 (if not a regular school 
day), Martin Luther King, Jr. Day (if not a District-wide assigned workday), Good Friday, Easter Monday 
(if not a regular school day), and Memorial Day. 
 
Family Illness:  In case of serious illness of a member of the individual’s immediate family, six (6) days 
leave of absence with full pay may be granted per school year. The immediate family shall be defined 
as including husband or wife, parents of both, children, sisters, or brothers. “Serious illness” shall be 

March 4, 2024 
Page 277 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 277 of 291



 

2 
 

defined to include only those illnesses that require either hospitalization or a direct consultation 
between the ill person and a medical doctor. This illness provision may include a father’s leave for the 
birth of a child. The District, or its designee, may request a doctor’s certificate of proof of serious illness 
or a statement from another person acceptable to the District. This certification shall be filed by the 
individual after the leave has been taken and shall be submitted to the Human Resources Office. 
 
Bereavement: Bereavement leave, up to but not exceeding five (5) days, may be granted. 
Bereavement Leave may be used only in the event of death in the immediate family. The immediate 
family shall be defined to include husband or wife, parents of both, children, grandparents of both, 
grandchildren, sisters, brothers, sisters-in-law, brothers-in-law, uncles, nieces or nephews. In the event 
of the death of other relatives or close friends, up to one (1) day per year bereavement year will be 
granted. 
 
Mileage:  In and out-of-district mileage paid as permitted by state law. 
 
Professional Dues: The District will contribute to dues for professional organizations, up to a 
maximum of $2,000.  
 
State/National Conventions:  Superintendent shall, at his discretion, participate in appropriate 
meetings and conferences at local and state levels and may attend at least one national 
convention/conference each year. The meeting expenses of the Superintendent shall be paid by the 
District. Additional national conventions and conferences will be upon School Board approval. 
 
 
       GRAND FORKS PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT #1 
 
_______________________________________ _____________________________________ 
Dr. Terry Brenner       Eric R. LunnAmber Flynn 
Superintendent of Schools    School Board President 
 
 
_______________________________________ _____________________________________ 
Date       Date 

March 4, 2024 
Page 278 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 278 of 291



Brandon Baumbach 

Business Manager 

Department Phone: 701.787.4885 

Direct Phone: 701.746.2205, Ext. 7126 

Fax: 701.772.7739 

bbaumbach020@mygfschools.org 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Grand Forks School Board 
FROM: Brandon Baumbach, Business Manager 
SUBJECT: Consideration of Temporary Construction Easement related to North Dakota Department 

of Transportation Signal Rehab Project Adjacent to Career Impact Academy
DATE: March 4, 2024
__________________________________________________________________________________ 

The North Dakota Department of Transportation (NDDOT) will be doing some signal rehabilitation along 
Gateway Drive (US 2), North Dakota. The anticipated start date is May 2025. In order to complete the 
work, a permanent right of way (fee acquisition) and a temporary construction easement is needed. 

On October 23, the board approved a fee acquisition and a temporary construction easement for 
property at the Wilder location. An additional temporary construction easement is needed for this same 
project on the Career Impact Academy (CIA) site. This came later as the ownership of the land 
transferred from the City of Grand Forks to the school district while NDDOT was securing permissions. 

A temporary construction easement is needed for contractor access to the property in the area 
indicated (red square pattern - Parcel 7-1) on the attached exhibits, to remove the traffic signal pole and 
foundation which is inside private property. Surrounding area after existing signal removal will be filled 
in with grass. For this temporary access, they are offering $300 compensation. The $300 payment is 
just a flat payment that does not represent any specific value. It was determined to be a fair payment to 
compensate for the time the landowner is using to go over the paperwork and to sign. 

Administrative recommendation is to approve the execution of the attached documents including: 

• Memorandum of Offer to Landowner

• Memorandum agreement

• Temporary construction easement for parcel 7-1

• Notification and appraisal waiver

• Agreement for entry and construction (no compensation)

Attachments: 
Map of Parcels 7-1 
Memorandum of Offer to landowner 
Memorandum agreement 
Temporary construction easement for parcel 7-1 
Notification and appraisal waiver 
Agreement for entry and construction (no compensation) 

March 4, 2024 
Page 279 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 279 of 291



AIRPORT 6TH RESUBDIVISION

REPLAT OF LOT A OF AUDITOR'S SUBDIVISION NO. 1

Access Control Line

Access Control Line

Access Control Line

1

1

2 2

40'

10'
10'

Grand Forks, ND 6-151-50
 Resubdivision of 

th

Airport 6
A portion of Lot 2, Block 2, 

Grand Forks, ND 58201

2400 47th Ave. S

Grand Forks Public School District No. 1

Temporary Const. Easement

100 SF PARCEL NO. 7-1 

7-1

Sig

2 " Alum Cap

Rec Sec Cor

Gateway Drive (US 2)

4
2

n
d

 S
tr

e
e
t

B
N

S
F

 R
a
il

ro
a
d

B
N

S
F

 R
a
il

ro
a
d

E:2804940.75

N:358926.12

N 87°26'13"E (Align)

N 87°26'13"E (Sec / Twp Line)

R-50-W

T-152-N

Sec 31

R-50-W

T-151-N

Sec 6

R-50-W

T-152-N

Sec 32

R-50-W

T-151-N

Sec 5

S
e
c
 

L
i
n
e
 

X
i
n
g

3
1
+

1
5
.7

7

�
 

=
 
0
°
0
9
'
0
3
"
 

R
t

S
ec

 L
in

e
S

ec
 li

ne

N 87°26'15"E (Sec / Twp Line)

R
e
c
 S

e
c
 C

o
r

2
" 

A
lu

m
 C

a
p

1
4

' 
S

 t
o

N 87°35'16"E (Align)

2" Alum Cap
2643.08' N to

 Cor4
1Rec 

14'

31
+

15
.7

7
 

P
I

29 30 31 32 33 34

PARCEL NO. 7-1 REVISED RE-PLATTED SUBDIVISION AND ADDRESS ON 9/27/23, [CSD]

MILE

NORTH DAKOTA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

RIGHT OF WAY PLAT

APPROVED

COUNTYBasis of bearing is:

S

URVEYOR'S SEAL

D
A

T
E

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

 W
A

S
 C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

:
D

A
T

E
:

P
L
A

T
 M

A
D

E
 B

Y
:

D
A

T
E

:

GRAPHIC SCALE (in feet)

1" = 

0

DATE

LEGEND

Assumed Coordinates

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
 L

.S
.:

Iron Monument found

Controlled access point

PROJECT NO.

They are derived from the 

All coordinates on this sheet are 

23348

2/29/2024 jordan.reihe H:\NDDOT\0T4M00156\CAD\ORDND\NDDOT-0T4M00156\ROW\RP_07.dgn11:23:15 AM

BY A REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR.
UNTIL THE PLAT IS SEALED AND SIGNED
THE DATA ON THE PLAT IS NOT OFFICIAL
THIS PLAT IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY.

 PROJECT NO.        PCN        PARCEL          PLAT NO.         SUPPLEMENTS

Alignment Monument

Iron Pin Reference Monument

Iron Pin R/W Monument

Grid North

2/19/2024

Shawn Thomasson
 

GRAND FORKS

40'

1208040
Grand Forks County ground coordinates.x

One7 of 7
 

7-1
355

6-999(051)

6-999(051)
2
/1

9
/2

0
2
4

S
h

a
w

n
 T

h
o

m
a

s
s
o

n
2
/1

9
/2

0
2
4

C
h
ri
s
 D

a
h
l,
 P

E
5
/1

2
/2

0
2
3

North Dakota North Zone, Combination Factor (cf) = 0.9998805 (International Foot)

NAD 83 (2011) Reference Frame;

purposes.

implementation

recording or

and not for

is preliminary

This document

PRE
LIM
INA

RY

March 4, 2024 
Page 280 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 280 of 291



MEMORANDUM OF OFFER TO LANDOWNER
North Dakota Department of Transportation 
Environmental & Transportation Services
SFN 6777 (3-2017)

PCN

2 3 3 4 8

Project
NHU-6-999(051)
County
Grand Forks
Parcel(s)

7-1

Landowner(s)
Grand Forks Public School District No. 1
Landowner Address
2400 47th Ave South

City
Grand Forks

State
ND

ZIP Code
58201

Valuation Type
Appraisal Waiver Valuation

Approved Compensation
 $300.00 

On behalf of the North Dakota Department of Transportation, the right of way agent is hereby authorized to offer the 
above approved amount as full compensation for the permanent and/or temporary acquisition of the above-identified 
parcels and all damages incidental thereto.  
 
The attached Compensation and Parcel Breakdown is incorporated with this offer and describes the parcels and/or 
temporary easement areas that are being acquired for highway purposes.

Notes

ROW AGENT
Name (Type or Print)
Nicole Maier
Agency
Jorge Pagan Appraisal Consulting
Signature Date

NDDOT MANAGEMENT APPROVAL
Name (Type or Print)
Raymond Barchenger/Program Manager
Signature Date

02/29/2024

March 4, 2024 
Page 281 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 281 of 291



COMPENSATION & PARCEL BREAKDOWN
North Dakota Department of Transportation 
Environmental & Transportation Services
SFN 61188  (3-2020)

PCN

2 3 3 4 8

Addendum to:

Memorandum of Offer

Memorandum Agreement

Page of
Page 3 of 3

Project
NHU-6-999(051)
County
Grand Forks
Parcel(s)

7-1

Landowner Name(s) (Type or Print)
Grand Forks Public School District No. 1

Initial Date

The following valuation breakdown describes parcels and/or temporary easement areas that are being acquired for highway 
purposes:

Permanent Acquisition Yes No

Temporary Acquisition Yes No

Parcel #
Type of Temporary 

Acquisition 
X

Value 
(Per Acre/Sqft) = Parcel Values

Acres
Sqft

7-1 Construction Easement 100 X  $1.44 =  $144.00

Total Temporary Parcel Value  $144.00

Total Temporary Compensation  $300.00

Compensation Breakdown

Total Permanent Compensation

Total Temporary Compensation  $300.00

Total Curb Ramp Compensation

Fencing

Damages

Total Compensation Due  $300.00

March 4, 2024 
Page 282 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 282 of 291



MEMORANDUM AGREEMENT
North Dakota Department of Transportation 
Environmental & Transportation Services
SFN 6776  (3-2020)

PCN

2 3 3 4 8

Project
NHU-6-999(051)
County
Grand Forks
Parcel(s)

7-1

Landowner Name(s) 
Grand Forks Public School District No. 1
Landowner Address
2400 47th Ave South

City
Grand Forks

State
ND

ZIP Code
58201

Executed Document(s) (check all applicable): Temporary Construction Easement, Agreement for Entry Without Compensation,

Warranty Deed, Subordination of Rights, Permanent Maintenance Easement, Other Type(s)

Date Executed Total Compensation
 $300.00 

The Landowner(s), listed above, did execute a document on the date listed above, conveying to the state of North Dakota for the use and 
benefit of the North Dakota Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred to as (NDDOT), the above-identified parcel(s) of property, as 
shown on the right of way plats. 
  

The attached Compensation and Parcel Breakdown is incorporated with this agreement and describes the parcels and/or temporary 
easement areas that are being acquired for highway purposes.

Check and initial the following applicable terms of this agreement Landowner(s) Initials

1. The state assumes ownership of all trees within the right of way excepting that the Landowner(s) may 
remove or use said trees prior to construction.

2. feet of fence to be moved by the owner prior to construction of the highway.

3. The Landowner(s) will be permitted to use any cattle pass or drainage structures installed for a cattle or 
stock pass at their own risk. The state will provide the necessary maintenance for highway purposes. The 
Landowner(s) will provide the necessary maintenance for use as a stock pass.

4. NDDOT will not maintain any service road except those shown on the right of way plat.

5. Access will be provided throughout the construction process.

6. The Landowner(s) agree(s) to joint payment with mortgagee, if requested by the mortgagee.

7. The Landowner(s) shall inform any and all tenant(s) of proposed work.

Additionally 
Payment to be made to Grand Forks Public School District No. 1

Landowner(s) Initials

This agreement is now made and entered as a memorandum of all of the terms, and the only terms agreed upon in connection with this 
settlement. 
   

The NDDOT director, or his/her assigns, must approve all settlements. NDDOT will notify the Landowner(s) in writing if this settlement is 
not approved. Payment by the state must await approval of title and processing of a voucher and warrant through the offices of the state 
auditor and treasurer. Now, therefore, as a memorandum agreement of the parties, the undersigned do hereby execute and deliver this 
document. This agreement was reached without coercion, or promises other than those shown in the agreement, or threats of any kind 
whatsoever by, or to, either party. The right of way agent has no direct or indirect present or contemplated future personal interest in the 
parcels or in any benefit from the acquisition of such property. 
  

This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which shall constitute one 
and the same instrument.

March 4, 2024 
Page 283 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 283 of 291



SFN 6776 (3-2020)
Page 2 of 2

EXECUTED the date last signed below.

LANDOWNER
Name (Type or Print)
Amber Flynn, Board President of Grand Forks Public School 
District No. 1
Signature Date

WITNESS
Name (Type or Print)

Signature Date

LANDOWNER
Name (Type or Print)
Brandon Baumbach, Business Manager of Grand Forks 
Public School District No. 1
Signature Date

WITNESS
Name (Type or Print)

Signature Date

ROW Agent 
Name (Type or Print)
Nicole Maier
Agency/Firm
Jorge Pagan Appraisal Consulting
Signature Date

NDDOT ROW Agent 
Name (Type or Print)
Stacy Wilz
Signature Date

NDDOT Management Approval 
Name (Type or Print)
Raymond Barchenger/Program Manager
Signature Date

March 4, 2024 
Page 284 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 284 of 291



COMPENSATION & PARCEL BREAKDOWN
North Dakota Department of Transportation 
Environmental & Transportation Services
SFN 61188  (3-2020)

PCN

2 3 3 4 8

Addendum to:

Memorandum of Offer

Memorandum Agreement

Page of
Page 3 of 3

Project
NHU-6-999(051)
County
Grand Forks
Parcel(s)

7-1

Landowner Name(s) (Type or Print)
Grand Forks Public School District No. 1

Initial Date

The following valuation breakdown describes parcels and/or temporary easement areas that are being acquired for highway 
purposes:

Permanent Acquisition Yes No

Temporary Acquisition Yes No

Parcel #
Type of Temporary 

Acquisition 
X

Value 
(Per Acre/Sqft) = Parcel Values

Acres
Sqft

7-1 Construction Easement 100 X  $1.44 =  $144.00

Total Temporary Parcel Value  $144.00

Total Temporary Compensation  $300.00

Compensation Breakdown

Total Permanent Compensation

Total Temporary Compensation  $300.00

Total Curb Ramp Compensation

Fencing

Damages

Total Compensation Due  $300.00

March 4, 2024 
Page 285 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 285 of 291



TEMPORARY EASEMENT
North Dakota Department of Transportation 
Environmental & Transportation Services
SFN 5417 (1-2019)

Page 1 of 2

EASEMENT

PCN

2 3 3 4 8

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION

Project
NHU-6-999(051)
Parcel(s)

7-1

Purpose of Easement (Check all that apply): Grading (including fills/cuts for driveway/highway, slope tie-ins/transitions)
Drainage Fencing Staging area Sidewalk and/or curb ramp improvements Other

Removing existing signal

Grantor(s)
Grand Forks Public School District No. 1
Grantor(s) Address
2400 47th Ave South

City
Grand Forks

State
ND

ZIP Code
58201

Date County
Grand Forks

This easement, between Grantor(s) whose name and address is listed above and state of North Dakota for the  
use and benefit of the North Dakota Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred to as the NDDOT, whose 
address is 608 East Boulevard Avenue, Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0700. 

WITNESSETH, that the Grantor(s), for and in consideration of the sum of one dollar and other valuable 
consideration to them in hand paid by NDDOT, the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledge, hereby grant, unto 
NDDOT, its successor and assigns, a temporary easement over land lying and being in the county listed above, 
State of North Dakota, and more specifically described as follows, to wit:

Parcel 7-1   
 
A portion of Lot 2, Block 2, Airport 6th Resubdivision to the City of Grand Forks in Section 6, Township 151 N, 
Range 50 W, of the 5th Principal Meridian, County of Grand Forks, State of North Dakota, described as follows 
and as shown on plat 7 of 7:   
 
The north 10.00 feet of the east 10.00 feet of said Lot 2, as measured at a right angle to and parallel with the 
north and east lines of said Lot 2.    
 
It is a condition of this easement that it shall not be filed for record and that all rights conveyed to the state of 
North Dakota and North Dakota Department of Transportation by this instrument shall terminate upon 
completion of construction of said project, or in five years from the date of conveyance, whichever comes first.   
 
Said strip is shown on the plat as parcel 7-1 and contains 100 SF more or less, and is subject to any easements 
or rights of way previously acquired. 
 
   END OF DESCRIPTION   
 
The legal description was prepared by Shawn M. Thomasson, Bolton & Menk Inc., 3168 41st Street South, 
Fargo, North Dakota 58104. 

This easement grants to the NDDOT, the right of ingress and egress for the purpose of this project as stated 
above, so long as this easement shall remain in full force and effect.  This easement does not change the current 
use of the subject parcel(s).  
   
Grantor(s) shall not alter the condition of the land during the term of this easement. Grantor(s) shall not store 
equipment or other property on the easement during the term of the easement, except for those existing fixtures 

March 4, 2024 
Page 286 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 286 of 291



SFN 5417
Page 2 of 2

that will not interfere with NDDOT's use of this easement. 
  
It is a condition of this easement that it shall not be filed for record and that all rights conveyed to the state of 
North Dakota and NDDOT by this instrument shall terminate upon completion of construction of said project, or in 
five years from the date of conveyance, whichever comes first. If an easement is necessary for more than one 
construction year, the temporary easement payment (as shown on the compensation and parcel breakdown 
within the memorandum agreement) will be made for each additional year of construction, up to four years.  
  
This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of 
which shall constitute one and the same instrument.

EXECUTED the date last signed below.

GRANTOR(S)
Name (Type or Print)
Amber Flynn, Board President of Grand Forks Public 
School District No. 1
Signature Date

WITNESS
Name (Type or Print)

Signature Date

GRANTOR(S)
Name (Type or Print)
Brandon Baumbach, Business Manager of Grand 
Forks Public School District No. 1
Signature Date

WITNESS
Name (Type or Print)

Signature Date

ROW AGENT
Name (Type or Print)
Nicole Maier
Agency/Firm 
Jorge Pagan Appraisal Consulting
Signature Date

NDDOT APPROVAL
Name (Type or Print)
Raymond Barchenger
Title 
Program Manager
Signature Date

March 4, 2024 
Page 287 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 287 of 291



NOTIFICATION AND APPRAISAL WAIVER
North Dakota Department of Transportation 
Environmental & Transportation Services
SFN 60794 (1-2019)

PCN

2 3 3 4 8

Project
NHU-6-999(051)

Parcel(s)

7-1

County
Grand Forks

Landowner(s)
Grand Forks Public School District No. 1
Landowner(s) Address
2400 47th Ave South

City
Grand Forks

State
ND

ZIP Code
58201

State and federal laws require just compensation be established and that a prompt written offer be made to acquire your 
property for the full fair market value.  In no event will the amount offered be less than the state's approved value.  The 
NDDOT will provide you with a written summary of the value established as just compensation in your offer. 
  
I/we, the undersigned, understand that we are entitled to receive just compensation for our property being acquired by 
the North Dakota Department of Transportation (NDDOT) to construct the above-named highway project.

Check One of the Following:

I/we do not wish to receive just compensation, but agree to donate the area, or a portion thereof, necessary for construction as 
shown on the plat(s).

I/we acknowledge payment is based on waiver valuation. (NDDOT minimum payment policy is  $300 for temporary acquisition or 
$600 for permanent acquisition)

The acquisition was valued over $10,000 but under $25,000.  I/we agree to receive the payment based on waiver valuation.

The acquisition was valued over $10,000 but under $25,000.  I/we wish to have my property interest appraised.  (Please 
note that if an Appraisal is requested, the appraised value will replace the value based on waiver valuation.) 
-In compliance with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Land Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (Public Law 91-646), the 
owner or their designated representative shall be given an opportunity to accompany the appraiser during the inspection of 
the property. 
I/we do do not wish to accompany the appraiser during the inspection of the property.
I/we acknowledge payment is based on the Appraisal and the opportunity was given to accompany the appraiser during the 
property inspection. (Appraisals are required if the acquisition is complicated or estimated to be over $25,000.)

It is understood that any changes in these plans, adverse to our property, will make this agreement null and void. 
  
This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which 
shall constitute one and the same instrument.

LANDOWNER(S)
Name (Type or Print)
Amber Flynn, Board President of Grand Forks Public 
School District No. 1

Name (Type or Print)
Brandon Baumbach, Business Manager of Grand Forks 
Public School District No. 1

Signature Date Signature Date

ROW AGENT
Name (Type or Print)
Nicole Maier

Agency/Firm
Jorge Pagan Appraisal Consulting

March 4, 2024 
Page 288 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 288 of 291



SFN 60794
Page 2 of 2

Signature Date

March 4, 2024 
Page 289 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 289 of 291



AGREEMENT FOR ENTRY AND CONSTRUCTION (NO COMPENSATION)
North Dakota Department of Transportation 
Environmental & Transportation Services
SFN 50882 (10-2017)

PCN

2 3 3 4 8

Project
NHU-6-999(051)
Parcel(s)
 
 
7-1

Purpose of Project
Signal Replacement

Landowner(s)
Grand Forks Public School District No. 1
Landowner(s) Address
2400 47th Ave South

City
Grand Forks

State
ND

ZIP Code
58201

This agreement, is between the state of North Dakota, acting by and through its Director of Transportation, 
hereinafter referred to as NDDOT, whose address is 608 East Boulevard Avenue, Bismarck, North Dakota 
58505- 0700, and the above-named Landowner. 
  
WITNESSETH, that the Landowner(s), for and in consideration of the sum of one dollar and other valuable 
consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant to the NDDOT, the right to enter 
upon the property of the Landowner(s) for the purpose of the project stated above and as shown in plans on file 
with NDDOT. The parcel(s) of land is located in:
Location
Lot 2, Block 2 of Airport 6th Resubdivision to the City of 
Grand Forks, North Dakota

Section
6

Township
151

Range
50

County
Grand Forks

This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original 
but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument.

EXECUTED the date last signed below.

GRANTOR(S):
Name (Type or Print)
Amber Flynn, Board President of Grand Forks Public School District No. 1
Signature Date

WITNESS
Name (Type or Print)

Signature Date

March 4, 2024 
Page 290 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 290 of 291



SFN 50882
Page 2 of 2

GRANTOR(S):
Name (Type or Print)
Brandon Baumbach, Business Manager of Grand Forks Public School District No. 1
Signature Date

WITNESS
Name (Type or Print)

Signature Date

Name (Type or Print)
Nicole Maier

Signature

ROW  AGENT

Agency
Jorge Pagan Appraisal Consulting

DateDate

NDDOT APPROVAL
Name (Type or Print)
Raymond Barchenger

Signature

Title
Program Manager

March 4, 2024 
Page 291 of 291

March 4, 2024 
Page 291 of 291


	Agenda
	Meeting Norms
	Celebrating Success - South Middle School
	February 20, 2024, Minutes
	February 26, 2024, Minutes
	Audited Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2023
	Consent Agenda
	Recommendation to Approve Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Order for Discharge to be served on Nneka Nwaokeafor, and Board Action
	Superintendent Evaluation Committee Report - Superintendent's March Evaluation and Superintendent's Contract Extension
	Consideration of Temporary Construction Easement related to ND DOT Signal Rehab Project Adjacent to Career Impact Academy



